
Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

Wednesday, May 12, 2021 
Closed Session - 6:00 PM 

Regular Session - 7:00 PM 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely 
telephonically or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Orders issued by the San 

Mateo County Health Officer on March 16, 2020 and March 31,2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order 
issued by the Governor in Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing 
guidelines which discourage large public gatherings, the Council Chamber will not be open to the public 

for this Town of Colma City Council Meeting. The purpose of these orders was to provide the safest 
environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing for public participation. 

Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer,  
the Zoom Meeting listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261 
Passcode: 074407 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (Houston) 

Dial by your location 
 +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
 +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
 +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
 +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc 

Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you 

are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the 
emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


   Page 2 of 3 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00PM 
1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor 

Negotiators. 
 

Agency Negotiator:   Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees:  All 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00PM 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 
• Colma Citizens Scholarship Recipients 
• Reimagine SamTrans Presentation 
• Proclamation in honor of Mental Health Month 
• Proclamation in honor of National Public Works Week 
• Proclamation in honor of Communities United Day 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the April 28, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for April 2021. 
4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 1.14 to Provide for 

Filing of Electronic Claims (second reading). 
5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Sections 3.04.160 and 3.04.170 of Subchapter 3.04 of the 

Colma Municipal Code Authorizing the Town to Adopt Future New or Increased Rates for Sewer 
Service Fees by Resolution (second reading). 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Establishing the Authorized Subsidy at $31,643 for the Water 
Conservation Incentive Program in Fiscal Year 2021-22. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
7. HOLY CROSS CELL TOWER - 1500 MISSION ROAD 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Conditional Use Permit to Install a New Stealth 
AT&T Wireless Communications Facility Within a Maintenance Area at the Holy Cross Cemetery at 
1500 Mission Road Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15303, Class 3. 

STUDY SESSION  
8. FY 2021-22 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting.  
 
 



   Page 3 of 3 
 

REPORTS 
Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website 
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley, City Clerk at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

 
Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All 

This is a Closed Session item; there is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 04.28.21 Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 
Mayor Diana Colvin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
Gonzalez and John Irish Goodwin were present. Council Member Joanne F. del Rosario was 
absent. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
John Munsey, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another of our completely remote Council Meeting. A 
few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through email—
please email ccorley@colma.ca.gov to submit a public comment. You can also use the chat 
function to chat directly to our city clerk and she will be able to let us know that you would 
like to make a comment when your item comes up in the agenda. Thank you.”  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. She 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  

4 0 

PRESENTATION 

• The Mayor presented a proclamation in honor of National Poetry Month, recognizing the
first ever Daly City Youth Poet Laureate Madeleine Hur. Madeleine Hur offered her thanks
and recited one of her poems.

• Chief Munsey presented a Commendation of Officers Kim Trask and Joshua Moreno, for
their dedication to the community and commitment to the oath they swore to uphold.

Item #2



Minutes – Regular Meeting 04.28.21   Page 2 of 4 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:15 p.m. The Mayor announced that 
citizen Laura D’Amico had submitted a public comment via email; the City Clerk read the 
comment into the record. The Mayor closed the public comment period at 7:17 p.m. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 24, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
2. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Five-Year Financial 

Reporting and Transparency Contract with OpenGov for a Total Contract Value of $85,575. 
Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to approve the consent calendar items #1 and 2; 
the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fisicaro and carried by the following vote:  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

3. ELECTRONIC SERVICE OF GOVERNMENT CLAIMS AND NOTICES  
City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public 
comment hearing at 7:29 p.m. and seeing no one request to speak, she closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion followed. 
Action: Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro moved to Introduce and Waive a Further Reading of an 
Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 1.14 to Provide for Filing of 
Electronic Claims; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

 

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 04.28.21   Page 3 of 4 

4. FUTURE NEW OR INCREASED RATES FOR SEWER SERVICE FEES 
City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public 
hearing at 7:38 p.m. and seeing no one request to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed. 
Action: Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro moved to Introduce and Waive a Further Reading of an 
Ordinance Amending Sections 3.04.160 and 3.04.170 of Subchapter 3.04 of the Colma 
Municipal Code Authorizing the Town to Adopt Future New or Increased Rates for Sewer 
Service Fees by Resolution; the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

STUDY SESSION 

5. DONATION OF LAND TO THE TOWN OF COLMA 
City Attorney Christopher Diaz announced that Council Member John Goodwin would be 
recusing himself out of an abundance of caution because he lives within 500 feet of the 
edge of Holy Cross Cemetery. The City Clerk placed Council Member Goodwin into the 
waiting room of the zoom meeting.  

City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public 
comment period at 8:18 p.m. and seeing no one come forward, the Mayor closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. After Council discussion was complete, the 
City Clerk brought Council Member Goodwin back into the zoom meeting.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  

6. FY 2021-2022 BUDGET 
City Manager Brian Dossy and Administrative Services Director Pak Lin presented the staff 
report. Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 8:36 p.m. and seeing no one 
come forward, the Mayor closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. and it will be 
held remotely.  

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 04.28.21   Page 4 of 4 

REPORTS  

City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 
 There will be a Closed Session on May 12 at 6:00 p.m. regarding Labor negotiations, and 

on May 26 at 5:30 p.m. regarding the City Manager’s Annual Evaluation.  
 Vaccinations are going well and are more widely available than ever. The CDC has changed 

masking recommendations announcing that fully vaccinated people may stop using masks 
outdoors, unless it is a crowded space.  

 San Mateo County is still in the Orange tier of the State’s Reopening Plan.   
 City Clerk Caitlin Corley was awarded with the Municipal Clerk Award of Distinction for 

Public Relations by the City Clerk Association of California. Congratulations, Caitlin! 

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 
Mayor Colvin announced, “Before we close the meeting, I wanted to recognize a special 
birthday. Our very own Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro has a milestone birthday this Friday. So 
I’d like you all to join me in wishing Helen a very happy 70th birthday!” 
 
She adjourned the meeting at 8:5 p.m. and closed in memory of Bianca Caserza, long time 
Daly City resident; Rosa Alvarez de Ortega, grandmother of Recreation staff member and 
Colma resident Jovana Toscano; Sister Rosa Chavez, Council Member John Goodwin’s 
sister-in-Law; and Alice Letcavage, longtime and beloved resident of Colma.  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Item #3































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ord ___  - CMC Subchapter 1.14 - Claims Ordinance (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 1.14 
TO PROVIDE FOR FILING OF ELECTRONIC CLAIMS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1.  FINDINGS, PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY. 

The City Council of the Town of Colma finds: 

(a) Subchapter 1.14 of the Colma Municipal Code provides procedures for the filing of 
claims against the Town of Colma for money or damages. 

(b) Senate Bill 1473 (Stats. 2020, ch. 371) amended the Government Claims Act to 
authorize a person to present a claim by electronically submitting it to a public entity, if expressly 
authorized to do so by an ordinance or resolution of the public entity (Cal. Government Code § 
915(a)(3)).  

(c) As the Town of Colma already accepts claims filed electronically, the Town wishes 
to amend the Municipal Code to formally authorize, and provide procedures for, electronic filing 
of claims to conform to current practice. 

ARTICLE 2.  CMC SECTION 1.14.020 AMENDED. 

Section 1.14.020 of the Colma Municipal Code is hereby amended and restated to read as follows: 

“1.14.020 Form of Claim. 

All claims shall be made in writing and verified by the claimant or by his or her guardian, 
conservator, executor or administrator. No claim may be filed on behalf of a class of 
persons unless verified by every member of that class as required by this section. In 
addition, all claims shall contain the information required by California Government Code 
Section 910.  

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 915, a claim, any amendment thereto, 
or an application for leave to present a late claim may be submitted electronically to the 
Town of Colma by using the online claim form available on the City Manager/City Clerk’s 
Office webpage in accordance with all publicly posted instructions.  The City Manager is 
authorized to provide uniform instructions for the filing of claims electronically that are 
not in conflict with Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code or this Section. 

Proof of electronic service may be made and signed in the manner prescribed by California 
Government Code Section 915.2, as it may be amended from time to time.  If the claim 
or application is submitted electronically, the person or party shall be deemed to have 
provided consent to accept service electronically of the notices specified in Government 

Item #4



Ord ___  - CMC Subchapter 1.14 - Claims Ordinance (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 2 of 3 
 

Code Section 915.4, as may be amended from time to time, and other correspondence 
from the Town of Colma or its representatives.” 

 

ARTICLE 3.  SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 4.  CEQA DETERMINATION - NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the activity is not a 
project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 
14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, 
directly or indirectly. 

 
ARTICLE 5.  POSTING; EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the three 
(3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to take force 
and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 



Ord ___  - CMC Subchapter 1.14 - Claims Ordinance (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 3 of 3 
 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on April 28, 2021 and duly adopted at a Regular 
Meeting of said City Council held on _____________, 2021 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin       

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ord ___ - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 1 of 6 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 3.04.160 AND 
3.04.170 OF SUBCHAPTER 3.04 OF THE COLMA 

MUNICIPAL CODE AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ADOPT 
FUTURE NEW OR INCREASED RATES FOR SEWER SERVICE 

FEES BY RESOLUTION 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

_________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 1. FINDINGS, PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY. 

(a) Town of Colma (“Town”) provides services relating to sewer to properties within 
the Town’s jurisdiction, and charges service fees and charges for providing such services to 
properties pursuant to the authority set forth under California Health and Safety Code section 
5471 (“Section 5471”); and 

(b) In order to use the authority of Section 5471 to adopt service fees and charges, 
public agencies previously were required to adopt such fees by ordinance; and 

(c) Effective January 1, 2017, Section 5471 and the statutes following it were 
amended to allow for the adoption of new or increased service fees by resolution as well as by 
ordinance; and 

(d) The Town previously adopted fees and charges for sewer service by ordinance in 
order to comply with Section 5471 prior to amendment, and now wishes to authorize future new 
or increased sewer service fees and charges to be adopted by resolution; and 

(e) The Town further wishes to amend sections of the Colma Municipal Code, to be 
consistent with the changes proposed herein.  

_________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 2. ORDER. 

The Town hereby authorizes any future new or increased fees or charges for sewer service to be 
adopted by resolution.  Any new or increased fee or charge adopted by resolution pursuant to 
the authority granted by this Ordinance shall have the same force and effect as if such new or 
increased fee or charge had been adopted by ordinance, and to the extent authorized in such 
resolution, shall repeal or replace any conflicting fee or charge previously adopted by the City 
Council, whether such conflicting fee or charge had been adopted by resolution or ordinance.  

/ 

/ 

Item #5



Ord ___ - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 2 of 6 

_________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 3. CMC 3.04.160 AND 3.04.170 AMENDED. 
 

Section 3.04.160 is hereby amended in its entirety and replaced as follows: 
   

“3.04.160 Fees for Sewer Service Provided Through City of South San Francisco Sewer 
System. 

(a) Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the respective 
meanings shown: 

(1) “Charge” means the amount of the payment required for sewer service 
provided to a parcel or facility; the charge is determined by multiplying the rate times the number 
of units of service that are specified in this ordinance. 

(2) "Institutional" class of users means schools, colleges, rest homes, 
hospitals, clubs, lodges and similar uses. 

(3) "Light commercial" class of users means bars (without dining facilities), car 
washes, department and retail stores, hotels, motels (without dining facilities), laundromats, 
professional and business offices, banks, savings and loan associations, warehouses, auto rentals 
(without repair shops), newspapers, commercial printing shops, freight and drayage services, 
barbershops, shoe repair shops, camera shops, plating shops, wood and furniture fabricators, 
heating and appliance stores, drug stores, auto supply stores, general contractors' offices, public 
administration offices, health services, legal services, dry cleaners, metal fabricators, lumber 
companies, laundry services, sheet metal shops, and similar uses with wastewater strengths less 
than or approximately equivalent to residential strength. 

(4) "Moderate commercial" class of users means auto/gas service stations, 
auto steam cleaners, auto rentals (with repair shops), bakeries, beauty and hair salons, 
commercial laundries, mortuaries, lodges (with dining facilities), radiator repair shops, markets 
(with garbage disposals), ice cream parlors, candy manufacturers, food preparation and caterers, 
sandwich shops, drive-in theaters, creameries, roofers, chemical preparations, machine shops, 
photo/film processors, rug, carpet, upholstery cleaners, foundries, ceramics studios, oil services, 
transmission services, sanitation services, furriers, drum and barrel cleaners, and similar classes 
of uses with wastewater strengths significantly greater than residential strength. A user in this 
class will be reclassified to the light commercial use classification if it adequately demonstrates to 
the city engineer it is discharging only segregated or wastewater equivalent in strength to 
residential wastewater. 

(5) "Monitored and industrial" class of users means manufacturers, processors, 
producers, laundries, photo finishers, painting services, packagers and similar uses whose 
wastewater are monitored by the city. 

(6) “Rate” means the cost per unit of sewer service. 



Ord ___ - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 3 of 6 

(7) “Residential” class of users means the classification of discharger and the 
parcel of real property or portion thereof on which the discharger is situated, including single-
family dwelling, multifamily dwelling (duplex, flat, apartment and similar types of uses), trailer 
courts and similar types of uses. 

(8) "Septage Waste Haulers" means commercial businesses, which haul to and 
dispose of septage waste at the City of South San Francisco’s Water Quality Control Plant. 

(b) Sewer Service Charges. Sewer service charges shall be paid to Town of Colma for 
any connection to and use of the sewerage works of the City of South San Francisco in an amount 
determined as set forth in this section set by resolution. The rates used to determine the charge 
each year shall be the maximum amounts established in this section, unless by the City Council, 
by resolution, establishes sewer service rates for the upcoming fiscal year at a lesser amount than 
shown in this section. 

(c) Rates for all Properties. From and after the effective date of this subsection and 
until this Subchapter is repealed or amended to provide otherwise, all users in each class 
connected to the sewerage works of the City of South San Francisco shall pay annual sewer 
service charges set by resolution to the Town of Colma calculated in the manner set forth in 
paragraph (e) of this section, using the rates set forth in the schedule on file with the City Clerk. 

(d) Pass-through Rates for all Properties. Until this Subchapter is repealed or amended 
to provide otherwise, all users in each class connected to the sewerage works of the City of South 
San Francisco shall pay annual sewer service charges set by resolution to the Town of Colma 
calculated in the manner set forth in paragraph (e) of this section, using the rates hereafter 
adopted by the City of South San Francisco, provided, however, that the Town shall give written 
notice of any applicable rate increase to each property on whom the increased rate is to be 
imposed not less than thirty days prior to the effective date of such rate increase.  In no event 
shall the rates for sewer service imposed by the Town of Colma pursuant to this section exceed 
the rates in effect for the prior fiscal year by more than 10%.” 

(e) Calculation of Sewer Service Charges for all User Classes. 

(1) Sewer service charges imposed on users within the residential class are 
calculated by multiplying the number of dwelling units on the assessor’s parcel by the annual rate 
per dwelling unit.  The dwelling unit rate for single residential assumes an average annual effluent 
flow of 84 CCF.  The multiple residential and trailer unit rate assumes an average annual effluent 
flow of 75 CCF. 

(2) The annual rate set forth in the schedule on file with the City Clerk shall be 
applied to institutional, commercial and non-monitored industrial classes unless the volume 
charge exceeds the minimum charge, in which event the volume charge shall be applied.  The 
minimum charge shall be applied to monitored industrial classes unless the volume charge or 
surcharge for suspended solids or surcharge for chemical oxygen demand, or any combination 
thereof, exceeds the minimum charge, in which event the applicable charge shall be computed 
by adding the volume charge, surcharge for suspended solids and surcharge for chemical oxygen 
demand. 



Ord ___ - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 4 of 6 

(3) Sewer service charges imposed on users within the institutional, light 
commercial, and moderate commercial classes are calculated by: (a) measuring the annual water 
use at the parcel and multiplying this number by the flow rate shown in the schedule on file with 
the City Clerk or (b) measuring the annual sewer flow from the parcel and multiplying this number 
by the effluent rate shown in the schedule on file with the City Clerk for restaurant, institutional, 
or commercial users. 

(4) Sewer services charges imposed on users within the industrial and monitored 
classes are calculated by measuring the annual amount of wastewater flow, chemical oxygen 
demand and solids discharged from the parcel and multiplying these numbers by the respective 
rates shown in the schedule on file with the City Clerk.  Separate sewer rates are calculated for 
each components and then added for the total sewer service charge for the parcel. 

(5) Sewer services charges imposed on septage waste haulers are calculated 
by multiplying the gallons of flow discharged by the septage waste hauler by the rate shown in 
the schedule on file with the City Clerk.” 

Section 3.04.170 is hereby amended in its entirety and replaced as follows: 

“3.04.170 Fees for Sewer Service Provided Through NSMCSD Sewer System. 

(a) Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the respective 
meanings shown: 

(1) “Charge” means the amount of the payment required for sewer service 
provided to a parcel or facility; the charge is determined by multiplying the rate times the number 
of units of service that are specified in this ordinance. 

(2) “NSMCSD” means the North San Mateo County Sanitation District. 

(3) “Rate” means the cost per unit of sewer service. 

(b) Sewer Service Charges. Sewer service charges shall be paid to Town of Colma for 
any connection to and use of the sewerage works of the North San Mateo County Sanitation 
District in an amount determined as set forth in this section by resolution. The rate used to 
determine the charge each year shall be the maximum amount established in this section, unless 
by the City Council, by resolution, establishes sewer service rates for the upcoming fiscal year at 
a lesser amount than shown in this section.” 

(c) Rates for all Properties for Fiscal Year 2016-2017, 2017-2018, 2018-2019. From 
and after the effective date of this Ordinance, all All users in each class, connected to the 
sewerage works of North San Mateo County Sanitation District shall pay annual sewer service 
charges to the Town of Colma at the rate set forth in Table 3.04.170 per hundred (100) cubic 
feet of water consumption, or HCF, calculated on the basis of two months’ average winter water 
consumption annualized, with a minimum annual sewer service charge per year as set forth in 
Table 3.04.170 by resolution. 

(d)  Pass-Through Rate Increases for all Properties For Fiscal Years 2019-2020 and 
2020-2021. The Town shall pass-through all sewer rate increases adopted by the North San Mateo 



Ord ___ - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 5 of 6 

County Sanitation District. For those years, all All users in each class other than residential 
connected to the sewerage works of the North San Mateo County Sanitation District shall pay 
annual sewer service charges to the Town of Colma calculated in accordance with the rates 
imposed on the Town by the North San Mateo County Sanitation District for that fiscal year, 
provided, however, that the Town shall give written notice of any applicable rate increase to each 
property on whom the increased rate is to be imposed at least thirty days prior to the effective 
date of any such increase. In no event shall the rates charged by the Town of Colma for sewer 
service pursuant to this section exceed the rates in effect for the prior fiscal year by more than 
10%. 

Table 3.04.170: Sewer Service Rates for Sewer Service  
Provided By NSMSD by Fiscal Year (FY) 

 
Effective Date $/HCF Metered Water Usage Minimum Annual Charge 
July 1. 2016 

(FY 2016-2017) 
$6.76 $74.96 

July 1, 2017 
(FY 2017-2018) 

$7.30 $80.96 

July 1, 2018 
(FY 2018-2019) 

$7.88 $87.44 

 

ARTICLE 4.  SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 5.  CEQA DETERMINATION - NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

Adoption of the resolution is not an activity defined as a “project” under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15061(b)(3) and 15378(b)(4) 
either because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in 
question may have a significant effect on the environment and/or because the action is 
administrative and does not directly impact the environment. 
 
 
ARTICLE 6.  POSTING; EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the three 
(3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to take force 
and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

 

  



Ord ___ - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution (Introduced 04.28.21) Page 6 of 6 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ____ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on April 28, 2021, and adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on ________________, 2021, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin       

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated: ____________________  _____________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor  
 
 
      Attest: ______________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



Staff Report Water Conservation Incentive Program FY 2021-22 Page 1 of 4 
05/12/2021 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

Abdulkader Hashem, Associate Engineer 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 12, 2021 
SUBJECT: FY 2021-22 Water Conservation Incentive Program 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE AUTHORIZED SUBSIDY AT $31,643 FOR THE WATER 
CONSERVATION INCENTIVE PROGRAM IN FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In July 2012, City Council approved a Water Conservation Incentive Program for all sewer 
service customers in Town. The program grants each sewer service user a subsidy if the 
customer used the same amount of water or less compared to the average of the prior three 
years.  The proposed resolution would approve an authorized subsidy of $31,643 for the Water 
Conservation Incentive Program and direct the City Manager to include the appropriation in the 
proposed budget for fiscal year (FY) 2021-22 (as a reduction of General Fund revenue). 

Approval of an authorized subsidy of $31,643 would reduce the sewer service charge for each 
“Eligible Customer” by 10% for FY 2021-22. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Based on the 10% discount on each “Eligible Customer” the maximum cost the Town would 
incur for FY 2021-22 would be $31,643. Staff also requests a contingency amount of $2,000.00 
for unforeseen changes due modifications or usage calculation errors. 

BACKGROUND 

Resolution 2012-28, adopted in July 2012, the City Council approved a Water Conservation 
Incentive Program for all residential and commercial sewer service customers beginning in FY 
2014-15. The program’s purpose was to create an incentive program by promoting water 
conservation, which if complied with, would help ease the cost of increasing sewer service 
rates.  

Item #6



Staff Report Water Conservation Incentive Program FY 2021-22 Page 2 of 4 
05/12/2021 

The process of calculating the Annual Sewer Service charge discount was amended by the City 
Council at the April 11, 2018 City Council meeting. 

 After the annual water consumption reports are provided to the Town via the Town’s 
water purveyor, Cal Water, Staff inputs the information and calculates out each property 
owners cost for their Annual Cost of Sewer charge.  

 Once that effort has been completed, the next calculation is to determine who are 
“Eligible Customers” (Definition of Eligible Customer is: A property owner who is 
connected to the Towns Sanitary Sewer System whose domestic water use is the same 
or less than the prior three (3) year average).  

 The Annual Sewer Service Discount is then based on the Annual Cost of Service for 
Eligible Customers only, for example if the Annual Cost of Service for Eligible Customers 
were $500,000 and the approved discount was 10%, the Annual Discount that the Town 
would be responsible for would be $50,000.  

ANALYSIS 

Authorized Subsidy 
The proposed resolution would establish $31,643 as the Authorized Subsidy for the Water 
Conservation Incentive Program. The Town’s Annual Cost of Service for Eligible Customers for 
providing Town-wide sewer service is calculated to be $316,430 for FY 2021-22. Using this 
data, the Individual Sewer Service Discount would be calculated as follows:  

Annual Cost of Service for Eligible Customers 
(South San Francisco + NCSMSD annual charges) 

$316,430 

Proposed Individual Sewer Service Discount  
(Authorized Subsidy divided by Annual Cost of Service) 

10.00% 

Authorized Subsidy $31,643 
 

Here’s an example of how this discount could affect an eligible residential customer1: 

Sewer service charge applicable to parcel1 $739.00 

Individual Sewer Service Discount  10.00% 

Savings to customer $73.90 

Net charge to Eligible Customer $665.10 

 

 
1 Using a hypothetical customer in the South San Francisco Sewer District,  



Staff Report Water Conservation Incentive Program FY 2021-22 Page 3 of 4 
05/12/2021 

The maximum cost to the Town would only be the approved Individual Sewer Service Discount 
percentage of the Annual Cost of Service for Eligible Customers. 

Council Adopted Values 
 

The Water Conservation Incentive Program serves a valid public purpose by rewarding and 
encouraging water conservation by both residents and businesses for their conservation efforts. 
The program is innovative and visionary, providing for an annual sewer subsidy for those who 
want to conserve a valued natural resource. The program also demonstrates the City Council’s 
commitment to adopting and implementing sustainability policies and programs. 

Sustainability Impact 

Programs such as the Water Conservation Incentive Program demonstrate what it means to be 
a sustainable community. Programs such as this bring focus to the importance of conservation.  

Alternatives 

Several alternatives are available to the Council: (2 examples, 5% and 15% discount) 

• The Council could lower the proposed Authorized Subsidy at 5% for Eligible Customers.  

Please see Example below: 

 Sewer service charge applicable to parcels $316,430 

Individual Sewer Service Discount  5.00% 

Savings to Eligible Customers $15,822 

Net charge to Eligible Customers $300,608 
 

• The Council could raise the proposed Authorized Subsidy at 15% for Eligible Customers.  

Please see example below: 

 Sewer service charge applicable to parcels $316,430 

Individual Sewer Service Discount  15.00% 

Savings to Eligible Customers $47,465 

Net charge to Eligible Customers $268,965 
 

Last year, Town adopted a resolution amending subchapter 1.14 of the Colma Administrative 
Code relating to the temporary suspension of the Water Conservation Incentive Program and 



Staff Report Water Conservation Incentive Program FY 2021-22 Page 4 of 4 
05/12/2021 

suspending the program for Fiscal Year 202-21. Staff still recommends the sewer subsidy to be 
held at 10% for those who made the effort to conserve. But given the difficult economic times 
that have been brought on by COVID 19 and the reduction of revenue coming into the Town, 
City Council may want to consider a reduction in the subsidy for this year. Going from the 
traditional 10% to 5% reduction for those Eligible Customers. In years past staff did not 
recommend lowering the Authorized Subsidy because it would or could result in Eligible 
Customers to lose motivation in continuing to reduce their water use. But given that these are 
extraordinary times, you could make this a one-year exception.  At this time Staff does not 
recommend raising the Authorized Subsidy, for the same reason as stated above, reduction of 
revenue to the Town, it could be considered generous but not responsible at this time.  

Next Steps 
 
With City Council approval of the Water Conservation Incentive Program, the City Engineer will 
prepare the Annual Engineer’s Report which will show the proposed sewer charge for each 
parcel for FY 2021-22. The Engineer’s Report will be presented to the City Council at the July 
14, 2021 City Council meeting for approval. Upon approval, the Engineer’s Report will be 
submitted to the County Tax Collector, who shall then collect the sewer service charge against 
each parcel at the same time as the Collector collects the property tax against that parcel. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends approving a Resolution allocating $31,643 for the Water Conservation 
Incentive Subsidy to help users reduce annual sewer charges while making a strong statement 
regarding the Town’s stance on providing programs that encourage the community to conserve 
natural resources such as water while adopting sustainable lifestyle practices.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
 



Res 2021-##, Water Conservation Incentive Program 2021-22 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE AUTHORIZED SUBSIDY AT $31,643 FOR THE 
WATER CONSERVATION INCENTIVE PROGRAM IN FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby resolves: 

1. Background

(a) On July 11, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2012-28 establishing a Water 
Conservation Incentive Program for all sewer service customers in the Town. The proposed 
program would grant each sewer service user a subsidy if the customer used the same amount 
of water or less compared to the average of the prior three years. 

(b) The City Council finds that the payments to be made under the Water Conservation 
Incentive Program serve a valid public purpose – to reduce water consumption – and that the 
program is fair and equitable to all users.  

2. Findings

The City Council finds as follows: 

(a) The Water Conservation Incentive Program serves a valid public purpose, to wit, it rewards 
and encourages water conservation by both residents and businesses especially in drought 
periods; 

(b) The program is innovative, providing for an annual sewer subsidy for those who want to 
conserve a precious natural resource; 

(c) The program demonstrates the City Council’s commitment to adopting and implementing 
sustainability policies and programs; 

(d) The proposed Authorized Subsidy described herein is affordable; and 

(e) In establishing the Authorized Subsidy described herein, the City Council has considered 
the long-term consequences to the financial health of the Town.   

3. Order

The City Council hereby establishes an Authorized Subsidy of $31,643 for the Water Conservation 
Incentive Program for fiscal year 2021-22. 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res 2021-##, Water Conservation Incentive Program 2021-22 Page 2 of 2 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on May 12, 2021 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower  Page 1 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

Jonathan Kwan, Associate Planner  
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 12, 2021 
SUBJECT:  1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO INSTALL A NEW 
STEALTH AT&T WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY WITHIN A 
MAINTENANCE AREA AT THE HOLY CROSS CEMETERY AT 1500 MISSION ROAD 
PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15303, CLASS 3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The installation and operation of the Wireless Communications Facility (WCF) requires a Use 
Permit subject to the findings in the Town’s Wireless Ordinance. Staff has worked with the 
applicant to minimize visual impacts of the installation to the extent feasible. Staff recommends 
approval of the project subject to the conditions in the attached resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

BACKGROUND 

Since 2019 AT&T has explored different locations as options to construct a wireless facility in 
Town to meet their coverage needs. After the consideration of multiple sites along El Camino Real 
(including the Colma Police Station), Serramonte Boulevard, Collins Avenue, and Mission Road, 
Chevrolet Dealership, Standard Plumbing Supply, Christy Vault Co, T-Mobile site and others, the 
applicant is proposing the facility within a 30’ x 40’ area on the interior of the cemetery near the 
north property line shared with Cypress Lawn Cemetery.  

Item #7



1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower  Page 2 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

The WCF is proposed to be located just east of the “Our Lady Garden Courts” mausoleum 
complex, approximately 600 feet from Mission Road and 80 feet from the Cypress Lawn property 
line. The facility includes an 85’ monument structure that houses an 82’ WCF with 12 panel 
antennas, 24 radio units and associated ground equipment. The proposed 85-foot-high facility 
would be housed in a monument structure constructed with durable fiberglass reinforced panels 
and finished with a light grey paint and a smooth textured finish to blend with existing stone and 
concrete structures at Holy Cross Cemetery (Attachment C). None of the equipment would be 
visible, and will be fully concealed in the monument structure, in the ground level cabinet 
structure, or screened behind the proposed fence. The area will be accessed through existing 
cemetery roadways and is surrounded by existing mature vegetation, specifically, mature 
eucalyptus trees. 

ANALYSIS 

Findings Relating to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Pursuant to Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines, Class 3, new construction of small 
structures, the project is categorically exempt. The proposed project proposes a new wireless 
communications facility with a maximum height of 85 feet and associated equipment located in a 
30’ x 40’ area at the northwest section of Holy Cross Cemetery. Therefore, the project is 
Categorically Exempt from further environmental review.  

Findings Related to the Conditional Use Permit 

Section 5.17.050 of the Colma Municipal Code establishes the development standards for WCFs. 
Section 5.17.050(a) allows for communications structures on properties in the “G” Zone upon 
issuance of a Use Permit. The City Council may grant a Use Permit if the findings in Section 
5.17.080(a) can be made: 

a) The proposed facility will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma
General Plan and Colma Municipal Code and will not adversely affect the
policies and goals set forth therein.

The property is designated as Cemetery in the General Plan and is within the G Zoning District. 
The Colma Zoning Ordinance allows for WCFs within this zoning designation, with approval of a 
Use Permit. While the facility exceeds the height limit in this zone and the site is located 
approximately 480’ to residential development (Veteran’s Village), the height and location of the 
WCF are necessary to provide and improve wireless coverage and internet service to the area. 
The applicant has provided coverage analysis maps to show signal strength with and without the 
increased height (Attachment D). In addition, the increased height provides opportunities for 
other WCFs to co-locate in the same structure if their service needs require additional WCFs. 

Provided that the proposed WCF complies with conditions of Use Permit approval, the use would 
be consistent with the goals and objectives of the Colma General Plan and the Zoning Ordinance. 

b) The proposed facility strictly adheres to the development standards and other
applicable regulations within this Chapter or, if applicable, an exception is
granted.



1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower  Page 3 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

The proposed facility adheres to the applicable development standards listed within the Colma 
Wireless Ordinance. 

Per Section 5.17.050(a), all WCFs are required to be located no closer than 1,000 feet from any 
Residential District. The proposed location is located more than 1000 feet from the Verano Homes 
development and all other R and R-S zones. The proposed location is approximately 480 feet 
from the Veteran’s Village development, separated by the BART right-of-way and access road. 
While the proposed location is located within 1000 feet of a residential development, the applicant 
has explored many alternative locations and determined that the proposed location is required to 
provide and improve wireless coverage and internet service to the area. 

Per Section 5.17.050(c), WCFs in the “G” Zone, shall be located so as not to be highly visible from 
any public street and shall be no higher than 36 feet from the ground if freestanding and no 
higher than 15 feet above the roof top if placed on a building. However, this height is permitted 
to be exceeded with an evidence of need report, which was submitted with the application.  

Per Section 5.17.050(e), all WCFs are required to utilize techniques to make the installation, 
operation, and appearance of a WCF as visually inconspicuous as possible and to hide the 
installation from predominant views from surrounding properties. To make the WCF comply with 
this requirement, the WCF is hidden from plain sight and located within a stealth monument 
structure designed to blend with Holy Cross Cemetery structures.  

Per Section 5.17.050(f), all components of new WCFs must comply with the setback requirements 
for the applicable zoning district. The proposed lease area is located approximately 80 feet away 
from the northern property line and 300 feet away from the western property line and complies 
with all applicable setback requirements. 

Per Section 5.17.050(g), every new support structure shall be a monopole, unless otherwise 
authorized. The proposed project is a monopole that is within a stealth monument structure. The 
proposed structure blends with the design of Holy Cross Cemetery. 

Per Section 5.17.050(j), any equipment that is not installed underground shall be screened by 
structures, topography, or vegetation to the maximum extent feasible. Per Section 5.17.050(k), 
all coaxial cables, conduit lines and electrical boxes shall be placed underground or within 
approved structures. All proposed above-ground equipment is located within the 30’ x 40’ area 
and are screened from public view. 

Per Section 5.17.050(m), applicants are encouraged to design WCFs to serve as public art, 
flagpoles or artificial natural features such as trees or rocks. Per Section 5.17.050(n) unless 
otherwise required by Town, County, State or Federal rules or regulations, WCFs shall have a 
non‐reflective finish and shall be painted a neutral color consistent with the predominant 
background color. The proposed stealth monument structure is designed with a textured finish 
and painted a light grey color to match the stone and concrete structures at Holy Cross Cemetery. 
A condition has been added to maintain the facility and its visual appearance. 

Per Section 5.17.050(r), disturbance of existing topography and on-site vegetation shall be 
minimized, unless such disturbance would substantially reduce the visual impacts of the facility. 
Existing large trees will not be disturbed.  Some existing trees will require pruning to allow for 
proper clearance along the access road.  



1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower  Page 4 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

c) The proposed facility is in compliance with all FCC (Federal Communications
Commission) and CPUC (California Public Utilities Commission) requirements,
and is not otherwise detrimental to public safety, community welfare, and
health, considering aspects over which the Town has purview.

Per the Radio Frequency Emissions Compliance Report submitted with the project application 
(Attachment E), the project will not expose members of the general public to hazardous levels of 
Radio frequency (“RF”) energy at the ground or in adjacent buildings. At worst-case predictions, 
RF energy levels associated with the operation of the WCF will be well below the federal standards 
for limiting public exposure to RF energy; therefore, it will not result in effects detrimental to 
public safety, community welfare, and health.  

d) The proposed facility will not create a nuisance or enforcement problem within
the neighborhood.

The proposed facility is a stealth WCF located within Holy Cross Cemetery. The property is zoned 
for cemetery use and will not be impacted by the proposed use. Aesthetically, existing vegetation 
will almost fully screen the WCF from public views as shown on the photo simulations attached 
as Attachment F. The stealth monument design further mitigates any visual impact from the 
proposed WCF.  

e) The proposed facility incorporates general site considerations, including site
layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings,
vehicular access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, public
safety and similar elements that provide a desirable environment for the
development.

The proposed WCF is sited within a 30’ x 40’ lease area at Holy Cross Cemetery. The lease area 
can be accessed through the driveway on Mission Road and an internal maintenance road that 
runs along the west side of the property. As a condition of approval, the access road shall be 
widened to 12 feet wide, improved with an all-weather surface, and clear or prune vegetation to 
improve emergency vehicle access. The WCFs operation and appearance will have minimal impact 
on existing site layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings, vehicular 
access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, or public safety.  

f) The proposed design incorporates general architectural considerations,
including the character, scale and quality of the design, the architectural
relationship with the site and other buildings, building materials, colors,
screening of exterior appurtenances, exterior lighting and similar elements
that ensure the compatibility of this development with other buildings and
structures on the subject property and adjacent properties, as well as each
element being consistent with the architectural style of the building or
structure.

The proposed facility is a WCF housed within an 85’ high monument structure with equipment 
cabinets on the ground. The monument structure is designed and will be painted to match the 
design and character of other buildings in Holy Cross Cemetery and will appear to be an additional 
monument structure. Only limited lighting visible close to ground level is proposed. Further, 
existing large trees are located around the facility to provide screening.  



1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower  Page 5 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

g) The proposed design incorporates general landscape considerations, including
the location, type, size, color, texture and coverage of plant materials,
provisions for irrigation, maintenance and protection of landscaped areas and
similar elements that ensure visual relief, including appropriate visual
screening.

The design of the proposed monument structure blends in with the existing structures and 
landscaping. With the height of the proposed structure, the existing, tall, mature trees provide 
screening. No additional plantings are proposed or are needed.  

h) The proposed facility is designed to blend with the surrounding environment,
with minimal visual impact.

With the surrounding landscape screening, stealth design of the monument structure, the 
structure will visually blend with the surroundings.  

i) The proposed facility is designed, sited, and will be operated in a manner that
does not adversely impact adjacent properties by noise, traffic, aesthetic, or
other impacts over which the Town has purview.

Provided that the proposed WCF complies with conditions of Use Permit approval, the WCF’s 
operation will be inconspicuous, its presence not noticeable, and it will not have any impacts on 
adjacent properties.  

Conditions of Approval 

Based on a review of the application and a meeting with the applicant, staff is recommending 
several conditions of approval (see Section 3 of the attached Resolution) including: 

• All proposed cables and lines to points of connections shall be underground.

• The project shall include stormwater treatment or low impact development options for
small projects.

• All WCFs and related equipment, including but not limited to fences, cabinets, poles, and
landscaping, shall be maintained in good working condition over the life of the Use Permit.
This shall include keeping the structures maintained to the visual standards established at
the time of approval. The facility shall remain free from trash, debris, litter, graffiti, and
other forms of vandalism. Any damage shall be repaired as soon as is practicable, and in
no instance more than ten (10) calendar days from the time of notification by the Town
or after discovery by the permittee. All of the wireless communications facility equipment
must be removed upon the expiration of the permit approval and/or when no longer in
operation, whichever occurs first.

• The applicant shall comply with all Colma Fire Protection District requirements including
the application for all applicable Fire Permits for the generator and fuel tank.



1500 Mission Road – Holy Cross Cell Tower  Page 6 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of fairness because the recommended 
decisions are consistent with how similar requests have been handled, and the Council value of 
responsibility because the proposed application has been carefully reviewed and conditioned 
so that it will be consistent with adopted development policies, and compatible within its setting. 

Sustainability Impact 

The proposed use within Colma will have no impact to the Town’s sustainability activities. 

Alternatives 

The following courses of action are available to the City Council: 

1. Adopt the resolution and approve the Conditional Use Permit with modified or additional
conditions of approval which would allow a Stealth AT&T Wireless Communications Facility
at Holy Cross Cemetery. This alternative may increase or reduce restrictions on the project
to satisfy specific City Council concerns.

2. Direct staff to bring back a resolution to deny the project. This alternative is not
recommended since the project provides wireless service in the local vicinity.

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving the Conditional Use Permit 
with findings and recommended conditions of approval.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 2021-__ 
B. Project Plans 
C. Proposed Color and Finish 
D. Coverage Analysis Map 
E. Radio Frequency Emissions Compliance Report 
F. Photo Simulations  



UPDATED Attachment A 

UPDATED 05.12.21 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO INSTALL A NEW 
STEALTH AT&T WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT THE HOLY CROSS 

CEMETERY AT 1500 MISSION ROAD TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15303, CLASS 3 

Property Owner: Archdiocese of San Francisco 
Location: 1500 Mission Road  

Assessor’s Parcel Number: 011-370-180 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows: 

1. Background

This resolution was adopted after the following proceedings had occurred: 

(a) The Town received an application to install and operate a wireless communications 
facility (WCF) located at a 30’ x 40’ space in the northwest corner of Holy Cross 
Cemetery. The facility includes an 85’ monument structure that houses a 82’ WCF with 
12 panel antennas, 24 radio units and associated ground equipment. The area will be 
accessed through existing cemetery roadways and is surrounded by existing mature 
vegetation. 

(b) Pursuant to Section 15303 of State CEQA Guidelines, Class 3, new construction of small 
structures, the project is categorically exempt from California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) review. 

(c) A Notice of Public Hearing was duly posted on the three official bulletin boards of the 
Town and in a conspicuous place on or near the subject property and was duly mailed to 
the persons to whom given, as required by law, on April 30, 2021. 

(d) A public hearing was held on this matter on May 12, 2021 and evidence was taken at 
the public hearing. 

(e) The City Council has duly considered said application, the staff report and public 
comments thereon. 

2. Findings

The City Council finds that: 

Findings Related to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Pursuant to Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines, Class 3, new construction of small 
structures, the project is categorically exempt. The proposed project constructs a new wireless 
communications facility and associated equipment located in a 30’ x 40’ area at the northwest 



Res 2021-___  Page 2 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

corner of Holy Cross Cemetery. Therefore, the project is Categorically Exempt from further 
environmental review. 

Findings Related to the Conditional Use Permit 

Section 5.17.050 of the Colma Municipal Code establishes the development standards for WCFs. 
Section 5.17.050(a) allows for WCFs on properties in the “G” Zone upon issuance of a Use 
Permit. The City Council may grant a Use Permit if the findings in Section 5.17.080(a) can be 
made: 

(a) The proposed facility will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma 
General Plan and Colma Municipal Code and will not adversely affect the 
policies and goals set forth therein.  

The property is designated as Cemetery in the General Plan and is within the G Zoning District. 
The Colma Zoning Ordinance allows for WCFs within this zoning designation, with approval of a 
Use Permit. While the facility exceeds the height limit in this zone and the site is located 
approximately 480’ to residential development (Veteran’s Village), the height and location of the 
WCF are necessary to provide and improve wireless coverage and internet service to the area. 
The applicant has provided coverage analysis maps to show signal strength with and without 
the increased height (Attachment D). In addition, the increased height provides opportunities 
for other WCFs to co-locate in the same structure if their service needs require additional WCFs. 

Provided that the proposed WCF complies with conditions of Use Permit approval, the use 
would be consistent with the goals and objectives of the Colma General Plan and the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

(b) The proposed facility strictly adheres to the development standards and other 
applicable regulations within this Chapter or, if applicable, an exception is 
granted. 

The proposed facility adheres to the applicable development standards listed within the Colma 
Wireless Ordinance with the grant of two applicable exceptions. 

Per Section 5.17.050(a), all WCFs are required to be located no closer than 1,000 feet from any 
Residential District. Planned Developments are zoning districts, albeit single property zoning 
districts. The proposed location is located more than 1000 feet from the Verano Homes 
development and all other R and R-S zones. The proposed location is approximately 480 feet 
from the Veteran’s Village development, separated by the BART right-of-way and access road.  

While the proposed location is located within 1000 feet of a residential development, an 
exception is warranted. Per Section 5.17.110, an exception may be granted if a finding is made 
that the applicant has demonstrated that the refusal of the Town to grant such an exception 
would prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless services under 
federal law. Under the applicable effective prohibition standard, the applicant must show that 
there is a significant gap in service and that the facility proposed to remedy the gap is the least 
intrusive means after considering alternatives. To be the least intrusive means, the applicant 
must show that the proposed facility is least intrusive to the values of the community as 
expressed in the Code. Here, the RF report and coverage maps demonstrate the need, and the 



Res 2021-___  Page 3 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

RF report demonstrates that the installation will operate well within FCC guidelines.  tThe 
applicant has explored many alternative locations and determined that the proposed location is 
required to provide and improve wireless coverage and internet service to the area. Further, 
from an aesthetic perspective, the facility is stealth and screened with vegetation, and the 
location chosen is the most appropriate location in town, since it cannot be seen from public 
streets and is a good distance from Veteran’s Village. 

Per Section 5.17.050(c), WCFs in the “G” Zone, shall be located so as not to be highly visible 
from any public street and shall be no higher than 36 feet from the ground if freestanding and 
no higher than 15 feet above the roof top if placed on a building. However, this height is 
permitted to be exceeded with an evidence of need report, which was submitted with the 
application exception. For the same reasons as described above, an exception to the height 
requirement is also warranted.  

Per Section 5.17.050(e), all WCFs are required to utilize techniques to make the installation, 
operation, and appearance of a WCF as visually inconspicuous as possible and to hide the 
installation from predominant views from surrounding properties. To make the WCF comply 
with this requirement, the WCF is hidden from plain sight and located within a stealth 
monument structure designed to blend with Holy Cross Cemetery structures.  

Per Section 5.17.050(f), all components of new WCFs must comply with the setback 
requirements for the applicable zoning district. The proposed lease area is located 
approximately 80 feet away from the northern property line and 300 feet away from the 
western property line and complies with all applicable setback requirements. 

Per Section 5.17.050(g), every new support structure shall be a monopole, unless otherwise 
authorized. The proposed project is a monopole that is within a stealth monument structure. 
The proposed structure blends with the design of Holy Cross Cemetery. 

Per Section 5.17.050(j), any equipment that is not installed underground shall be screened by 
structures, topography, or vegetation to the maximum extent feasible. Per Section 5.17.050(k), 
all coaxial cables, conduit lines and electrical boxes shall be placed underground or within 
approved structures. All proposed above-ground equipment is located within the 30’ x 40’ area 
and are screened from public view. 

Per Section 5.17.050(m), applicants are encouraged to design WCFs to serve as public art, 
flagpoles or artificial natural features such as trees or rocks. Per Section 5.17.050(n) unless 
otherwise required by Town, County, State or Federal rules or regulations, WCFs shall have a 
non‐reflective finish and shall be painted a neutral color consistent with the predominant 
background color. The proposed stealth monument structure is designed with a textured finish 
and painted a light grey color to match the stone and concrete structures at Holy Cross 
Cemetery. A condition has been added to maintain the facility and its visual appearance. 

Per Section 5.17.050(r), disturbance of existing topography and on-site vegetation shall be 
minimized, unless such disturbance would substantially reduce the visual impacts of the facility. 
Existing large trees will not be disturbed.  Some existing trees will require pruning to allow for 
proper clearance along the access road.   



Res 2021-___  Page 4 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

(c) The proposed facility is in compliance with all FCC (Federal Communications 
Commission) and CPUC (California Public Utilities Commission) requirements, 
and is not otherwise detrimental to public safety, community welfare, and 
health, considering aspects over which the Town has purview.  

Per the Radio Frequency Emissions Compliance Report submitted with the project application 
(Attachment E), the project will not expose members of the general public to hazardous levels 
of Radio frequency (“RF”) energy at the ground or in adjacent buildings. At worst-case 
predictions, RF energy levels associated with the operation of the WCF will be well below the 
federal standards for limiting public exposure to RF energy; therefore, it will not result in effects 
detrimental to public safety, community welfare, and health.  

(d) The proposed facility will not create a nuisance or enforcement problem 
within the neighborhood. 

The proposed facility is a stealth WCF located within Holy Cross Cemetery. The property is zoned 
for cemetery use and will not be impacted by the proposed use. Aesthetically, existing vegetation 
will almost fully screen the WCF from public views as shown on the photo simulations attached 
as Attachment F. The stealth monument design further mitigates any visual impact from the 
proposed WCF. 

(e) The proposed facility incorporates general site considerations, including site 
layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings, 
vehicular access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, 
public safety and similar elements that provide a desirable environment for 
the development.  

The proposed WCF is sited within a 30’ x 40’ lease area at Holy Cross Cemetery. The lease area 
can be accessed through the driveway on Mission Road and an internal maintenance road that 
runs along the west side of the property. As a condition of approval, the access road shall be 
widened to 12 feet wide, improved with an all-weather surface, and clear or prune vegetation 
to improve emergency vehicle access. The WCFs operation and appearance will have minimal 
impact on existing site layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings, 
vehicular access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, or public safety.  

(f) The proposed design incorporates general architectural considerations, 
including the character, scale and quality of the design, the architectural 
relationship with the site and other buildings, building materials, colors, 
screening of exterior appurtenances, exterior lighting and similar elements 
that ensure the compatibility of this development with other buildings and 
structures on the subject property and adjacent properties, as well as each 
element being consistent with the architectural style of the building or 
structure.  

The proposed facility is a WCF housed within an 85’ high monument structure with equipment 
cabinets on the ground. The monument structure is designed and will be painted to match the 
design and character of other buildings in Holy Cross Cemetery and will appear to be an 
additional monument structure. Only limited lighting visible close to ground level is proposed. 
Further, existing large trees are located around the facility to provide screening.  



Res 2021-___  Page 5 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

(g) The proposed design incorporates general landscape considerations, 
including the location, type, size, color, texture and coverage of plant 
materials, provisions for irrigation, maintenance and protection of landscaped 
areas and similar elements that ensure visual relief, including appropriate 
visual screening.  

The design of the proposed monument structure blends in with the existing structures and 
landscaping. With the height of the proposed structure, the existing, tall, mature trees provide 
screening. No additional plantings are proposed or are needed.  

(h) The proposed facility is designed to blend with the surrounding environment, 
with minimal visual impact.  

With the surrounding landscape screening, stealth design of the monument structure, the 
structure will visually blend with the surroundings.  

(i) The proposed facility is designed, sited, and will be operated in a manner that 
does not adversely impact adjacent properties by noise, traffic, aesthetic, or 
other impacts over which the Town has purview.  

Provided that the proposed WCF complies with conditions of Use Permit approval, the WCF’s 
operation will be inconspicuous, its presence not noticeable, and it will not have any impacts on 
adjacent properties.  

3. Conditions of Approval 

The City Council approves the Conditional Use Permit to install an AT&T wireless communications 
facility at Holy Cross Cemetery at 1500 Mission Road (011-370-180), subject to the full and faithful 
performance of each of the general terms and conditions set forth in this Resolution and the 
following project-specific conditions: 

Conditional Use Permit 

(a) Allowed Uses.  This Conditional Use Permit shall specifically allow the operations of the 
AT&T wireless communications facility and associated equipment at the 30’ x 40’ area at 
Holy Cross Cemetery as specified in application materials received March 3, 2021 and on 
file with the Planning Department. Any additional proposed uses shall require review by 
the Town of Colma as an amendment to this Conditional Use Permit. 

(b) Expiration. The Use Permit for a WCF shall expire ten years from the date of approval 
unless the Use Permit is renewed by the Town. An application for renewal shall be 
submitted at least six months prior to the expiration of the Use Permit. 

(c) Minor Changes.  Minor changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively 
by the City Planner or designee. 

(d) Conduit. All proposed cables, conduits and electrical boxes for the proposed project will 
be placed underground or be concealed. 



Res 2021-___  Page 6 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

(e) USA North.  The applicant should contact USA North to assure that there are no utilities 
that conflict with the proposed improvements (USA North: 811/1-800-227-2600). 

(f) Stormwater Treatment. Plans submitted for construction permit(s) should incorporate 
stormwater treatment/Low Impact Development options for small projects such as 
infiltration basins or landscape-based measures like bioswales for stormwater drainage 
and treatment from hardscape areas. 

(g) Construction plans. The construction plans shall include an erosion & Sediment control 
plan, construction BMP plan, and a construction staging plan. 

(h) Recorded Easements. If the proposed easements on the plans are recorded, the 
applicant shall provide copies of recorded easements prior to issuance of Town 
permit(s). 

(i) Colma Fire Protection District Requirements. The following requirements of the Colma 
Fire Protection District shall be met prior to operation of the wireless facility: 

(i) The applicant shall apply for fire permits to install the new generator and fuel 
tank. Plans for the new generator shall include signage and location of the fire 
extinguisher. 

(ii) The area within 10 feet of the generator and its exhaust pipe shall be clear of 
vegetation. 

(iii) For further information on the requirements of the District, the applicant may 
contact the Deputy Fire Marshal, Bill Pardini at bpardini@colmafd.org or 
(650)740-2073.  

(j) Other Approvals. The permittee shall obtain all other applicable permits, approvals, and 
agreements necessary to install and operate the WCF in conformance with federal, 
state, and local laws, rules, and regulations. 

(k) Permits.  The Permittee shall obtain all necessary permits, including Building Permits and 
an Encroachment Permit for any work in the public right-of-way, prior to construction.  

(l) Building Permit Submittal. The applicant shall submit a soils report, engineering plans 
and energy documents with the building permit submittal. 

(m) Property lease. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a signed 
copy of the property lease agreement, exclusive of financial terms of the agreement, 
including provisions for the removal of the telecommunications facility within 60 days of 
abandonment. 

(n) Structural Integrity. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit 
a letter or report signed by a licensed profession engineer specializing in structural 
engineering documenting the ability of the structure to accept antennas. In addition, the 
letter or report should include the structure’s capacity for additional collocated antennas 
and the precise point at which the antennas should be mounted. 



Res 2021-___  Page 7 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

(o) Security Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a 
security plan which includes emergency contact information, location of main breaker 
switch, emergency procedures to follow, and any other information as required by the 
City Planner. 

(p) Maintenance Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a 
description of the anticipated maintenance program and back-up generator power 
testing schedule. 

(q) New Address. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall apply for a 
new address for the wireless facility. 

(r) Facility Maintenance. All WCFs and related equipment, including but not limited to 
fences, cabinets, poles, and landscaping, shall be maintained in good working condition 
over the life of the Use Permit. This shall include keeping the structures maintained to 
the visual standards established at the time of approval. The facility shall remain free 
from trash, debris, litter, graffiti, and other forms of vandalism. Any damage shall be 
repaired as soon as is practicable, and in no instance more than ten (10) calendar days 
from the time of notification by the Town or after discovery by the permittee. All of the 
wireless communications facility equipment must be removed upon the expiration of the 
permit approval and/or when no longer in operation, whichever occurs first. 

(s) Performance Bond. Prior to issuance of a building or electrical permit, the permittee 
shall file with the Town, and shall maintain in good standing throughout the term of the 
approval, a performance bond or other surety or another form of security for the 
removal of the facility in the event that the use is abandoned or the permit expires, or is 
revoked, or is otherwise terminated. The security shall be in the amount equal to 150 
percent of the cost of physically removing the wireless communications facility and all 
related facilities and equipment on the site. The permittee shall reimburse the Town for 
staff time associated with the processing and tracking of the bond, based on established 
hourly rates. Reimbursement shall be paid when the security is posted. 

(t) Construction & Maintenance House. The permittee shall make a good faith effort to 
minimize project-related disruptions to adjacent properties. Site improvement and 
construction work, including setup, loading or unloading of materials or equipment, 
performed as a part of this project is restricted to the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m., Monday through Saturday. No noise-generating construction work shall be 
performed on Sundays or national holidays. Non-emergency maintenance is restricted to 
the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. No noise-
generating maintenance work shall be performed on Saturdays, Sundays, or national 
holidays. Emergency maintenance and repairs are exempt from the restricted hours. 
Violation of this condition may result in issuance of a Stop Work Order and 
administrative Citations. 

(u) Height Verification. The property owner(s) or permittee shall submit a certification 
letter from a California certified land surveyor or registered civil engineer, which verifies 
that structure height complies with the approved construction drawings. 



Res 2021-___  Page 8 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

(v) Encourage Collocation. Where the wireless communication facility site is capable of 
accommodating a collocated facility upon the same site, the owner and operator of the 
existing facility shall allow another carrier to collocate its facilities and equipment 
thereon, provided the parties can mutually agree upon reasonable terms and conditions. 

(w) Nuisances. The Permittee shall not allow any nuisance to be maintained at the premises. 

(x) Town Access. The Town reserves the right of its employee, agents, and designated 
representatives to inspect permitted facilities and property upon reasonable notice to the 
permittee. In case of an emergency or risk of imminent harm to persons or property 
within the vicinity of permitted facilities, the Town reserves the right to enter upon the 
site of such facilities and to support, disable, or remove those elements of the facilities 
posing an immediate threat to public health and safety. The Town shall make an effort 
to contact the permittee, prior to disabling or removing wireless communications facility 
elements. 

(y) Contact Information. The permittee shall maintain on file with the Town and onsite at 
the wireless communications facility contact information of all parties responsible for 
maintenance of the facility. 

(z) RF Emission Monitoring. WCFs, whether operating alone or in conjunction with other 
facilities, shall not generate radio frequency emissions in excess of the standards 
established by the Federal Communications Commission. Within one (1) month after 
construction of the wireless communications facility and once every three (3) years 
thereafter, the property owner(s) or permittee shall submit a current RF exposure 
report, prepared by a professional engineer to the Planning Services Division, to ensure 
that no modifications to the site, surrounding environment, or equipment wear and tear 
have caused an increase in RF exposure. In the event of an increase over accepted 
levels is detected, the permittee shall be responsible for immediately making the 
necessary adjustments to comply with FCC standards. 

(aa) Abandonment 

(iv) Each permittee who intends to abandon or terminate the use of any WCF shall 
notify the Town of such intentions no less than sixty (60) days prior to the final 
day of use. Said notification shall be in writing, shall specify the date of 
termination, the date the WCF will be removed, and the method of removal. 

(v) Non-operation, disuse (including, but not limited to, cessation of wireless 
services) or disrepair for ninety (90) days or more shall constitute abandonment 
by the permittee under this subchapter. The City Planner shall send a written 
notice of abandonment to the permittee.  

(vi) Upon abandonment, the Use Permit shall become null and void. Absent a timely 
request for a hearing pursuant to subdivision (e) of this section, the permittee 
must, at the permittee’s expense, physically remove the WCF within ninety (90) 
days from the date of the abandonment notice. The WCF shall be removed in 
accordance with applicable health and safety requirements, and the site upon 
which the WCF was located shall be restored to the condition that existed prior 



Res 2021-___  Page 9 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

to the installation of the WCF, or as required by the community City Planner. The 
permittee shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits for the removal 
of the WCF and site restoration. 

(vii) At any time after ninety (90) days following abandonment, the City Planner may 
have the WCF removed and restore the premises as he/she deems appropriate. 
The Town may, but shall not be required to, store the removed WCF (or any part 
thereof). The WCF permittee shall be liable for the entire cost of such removal, 
repair, restoration, and storage. The Town may, in lieu of storing the removed 
WCF, convert it to the Town’s use, sell it, or dispose of it in any manner deemed 
appropriate by the Town. 

(viii) The permittee may request a hearing before a hearing officer appointed by the 
City Manager regarding the notice of abandonment, provided a written hearing 
request is received by the City Planner within 10 days of the date of the notice of 
abandonment. The appeal hearing shall be conducted pursuant to Subchapter 
1.12 of the Colma Municipal Code. The hearing officer shall issue a written 
decision. The decision of the hearing officer regarding abandonment of the WCF 
shall constitute the final administrative decision of the Town and shall not be 
appealable to the City Council. Failure to file a timely hearing request means the 
notice of abandonment is final and the WCF shall be removed within 90 days 
from the date of the abandonment notice. A Use Permit for a WCF may be 
revoked pursuant to Section 5.03.430. 

4. General Conditions 

(bb) This Conditional Use Permit shall run with the land and be freely and automatically 
transferred to each user of the property described herein, subject to each of the specific 
and general conditions herein. As used in this Conditional Use Permit, the word 
“Permittee” shall mean each person using the property pursuant to the permit granted 
herein, including successors to the person first obtaining the permit 

(cc) The Permittee must comply with all applicable federal, state and municipal laws, codes 
and regulations, including the California Building and Fire Codes. Nothing herein shall be 
construed as authorizing any approvals under, or any exceptions to any other law, code 
or regulation, or as authorizing any change to the occupancy classification of the 
premises or any buildings thereon as defined on the California Building Code. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing:  

(i) The Permittee shall maintain an annual Colma Business Registration; 

(ii) Prior to issuance of a Business Registration, the Permittee shall arrange for the 
project site to be inspected for Fire and Life Safety requirements of California 
Fire Code by the Colma Fire Protection District; and 

(dd) Indemnification. The permittee and property owner shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Colma, its agents, officers, officials, and employees (i) from all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions or proceedings 
(collectively “Actions”) brought against the Town or its agents, officers officials, or 



Res 2021-___  Page 10 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  

employees to challenge, attack seek to modify, set aside, void or annul this approval, 
and (ii) from any damages, liabilities, claims, suites, or causes of action of any kind or 
form, whether for personal injury, death or property damage, arising out of or in 
connection with the activities or performance of the permittee or the land owner or any 
of each one’s agents, employees, licensees, contractors, subcontractors, or independent 
contractors, pursuant to the approval issued by the Town. Further, permittees shall be 
strictly liable for interference caused by their WCFs with the Town’s communications 
systems. The permittee shall be responsible for costs of determining the source of the 
interference, all costs associated with eliminating the interference, and all costs arising 
from third party claims against the Town attributable to the interference. In the event 
the Town becomes aware of any such actions or claims the Town shall promptly notify 
the property owner and shall reasonably cooperate in the defense. It is expressly agreed 
that the Town shall have the right to approve, which approval shall not be unreasonable 
withheld, the legal counsel providing the Town’s defense, and the property owner 
and/or permittee (as applicable) shall reimburse Town for any costs and expenses 
directly and necessarily incurred by the Town in the course of the defense.  

(ee) The Conditional Use Permit may be modified or revoked should it be determined that:   

(i) The property is being operated or maintained in a manner that is detrimental to 
the public health or welfare, is materially injurious to property or improvements in 
the vicinity, constitutes a public nuisance, or is contrary to any law, code or 
regulation, or;  

(ii) If the Permittee fails to comply with and satisfy the conditions herein. 

(ff) The Permittee must agree to comply with each and every term and condition herein by 
countersigning a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the 
City Clerk no more than 45 days following City Council approval of the permit. If 
Permittee is not the property owner, then the property owner must consent to use of 
the property on the terms and conditions herein by counter-signing a copy of this 
resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the City Clerk no later than 45 days 
following City Council approval of the permit. Failure to return the counter-signed copy 
as specified shall render this permit null and void.  

  



Res 2021-___ Page 11 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility 

* * * * * * 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on May 12, 2021, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor 
Helen Fisicaro 
Raquel Gonzalez 
Joanne F. del Rosario 
John Irish Goodwin 

Voting Tally 

Dated: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Diana Colvin, Mayor  

Attest: ______________________________ 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PROTEST 

The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication requirements, 
reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code Section 
66020(d)(1), these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the amount of such 
fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. You are hereby 
further notified that the 90-day approval period in which you may protest these fees, dedications, 
reservations, and other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), began on 
date of adoption of this resolution. If you fail to file a protest within this 90-day period complying 
with all of the requirements of Section 66020, you will be legally barred from later challenging 
such exactions. 



Res 2021-___ Page 12 of 12 
1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility 

AGREEMENT 

Property Owner/Permittee 

The undersigned agrees to comply with each and every condition set forth in this permit. 

Signature, Property Owner Date 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 

Signature, Permittee Date 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 



Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility Page 1 of 12 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO INSTALL A NEW 
STEALTH AT&T WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT THE HOLY CROSS 

CEMETERY AT 1500 MISSION ROAD TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15303, CLASS 3 

Property Owner: Archdiocese of San Francisco 
Location: 1500 Mission Road  

Assessor’s Parcel Number: 011-370-180 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows: 

1. Background

This resolution was adopted after the following proceedings had occurred: 

(a) The Town received an application to install and operate a wireless communications 
facility (WCF) located at a 30’ x 40’ space in the northwest corner of Holy Cross 
Cemetery. The facility includes an 85’ monument structure that houses a 82’ WCF with 
12 panel antennas, 24 radio units and associated ground equipment. The area will be 
accessed through existing cemetery roadways and is surrounded by existing mature 
vegetation. 

(b) Pursuant to Section 15303 of State CEQA Guidelines, Class 3, new construction of small 
structures, the project is categorically exempt from California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) review. 

(c) A Notice of Public Hearing was duly posted on the three official bulletin boards of the 
Town and in a conspicuous place on or near the subject property and was duly mailed to 
the persons to whom given, as required by law, on April 30, 2021. 

(d) A public hearing was held on this matter on May 12, 2021 and evidence was taken at 
the public hearing. 

(e) The City Council has duly considered said application, the staff report and public 
comments thereon. 

2. Findings

The City Council finds that: 

Findings Related to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Pursuant to Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines, Class 3, new construction of small 
structures, the project is categorically exempt. The proposed project constructs a new wireless 
communications facility and associated equipment located in a 30’ x 40’ area at the northwest 
corner of Holy Cross Cemetery. Therefore, the project is Categorically Exempt from further 

Attachment A



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 2 of 12 
 

environmental review. 

Findings Related to the Conditional Use Permit 

Section 5.17.050 of the Colma Municipal Code establishes the development standards for WCFs. 
Section 5.17.050(a) allows for WCFs on properties in the “G” Zone upon issuance of a Use 
Permit. The City Council may grant a Use Permit if the findings in Section 5.17.080(a) can be 
made: 

(a) The proposed facility will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma 
General Plan and Colma Municipal Code and will not adversely affect the 
policies and goals set forth therein.  

The property is designated as Cemetery in the General Plan and is within the G Zoning District. 
The Colma Zoning Ordinance allows for WCFs within this zoning designation, with approval of a 
Use Permit. While the facility exceeds the height limit in this zone and the site is located 
approximately 480’ to residential development (Veteran’s Village), the height and location of the 
WCF are necessary to provide and improve wireless coverage and internet service to the area. 
The applicant has provided coverage analysis maps to show signal strength with and without 
the increased height (Attachment D). In addition, the increased height provides opportunities 
for other WCFs to co-locate in the same structure if their service needs require additional WCFs. 

Provided that the proposed WCF complies with conditions of Use Permit approval, the use 
would be consistent with the goals and objectives of the Colma General Plan and the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

(b) The proposed facility strictly adheres to the development standards and other 
applicable regulations within this Chapter or, if applicable, an exception is 
granted. 

The proposed facility adheres to the applicable development standards listed within the Colma 
Wireless Ordinance. 

Per Section 5.17.050(a), all WCFs are required to be located no closer than 1,000 feet from any 
Residential District. The proposed location is located more than 1000 feet from the Verano 
Homes development and all other R and R-S zones. The proposed location is approximately 480 
feet from the Veteran’s Village development, separated by the BART right-of-way and access 
road. While the proposed location is located within 1000 feet of a residential development, the 
applicant has explored many alternative locations and determined that the proposed location is 
required to provide and improve wireless coverage and internet service to the area. 

Per Section 5.17.050(c), WCFs in the “G” Zone, shall be located so as not to be highly visible 
from any public street and shall be no higher than 36 feet from the ground if freestanding and 
no higher than 15 feet above the roof top if placed on a building. However, this height is 
permitted to be exceeded with an evidence of need report, which was submitted with the 
application.  

Per Section 5.17.050(e), all WCFs are required to utilize techniques to make the installation, 
operation, and appearance of a WCF as visually inconspicuous as possible and to hide the 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 3 of 12 
 

installation from predominant views from surrounding properties. To make the WCF comply 
with this requirement, the WCF is hidden from plain sight and located within a stealth 
monument structure designed to blend with Holy Cross Cemetery structures.  

Per Section 5.17.050(f), all components of new WCFs must comply with the setback 
requirements for the applicable zoning district. The proposed lease area is located 
approximately 80 feet away from the northern property line and 300 feet away from the 
western property line and complies with all applicable setback requirements. 

Per Section 5.17.050(g), every new support structure shall be a monopole, unless otherwise 
authorized. The proposed project is a monopole that is within a stealth monument structure. 
The proposed structure blends with the design of Holy Cross Cemetery. 

Per Section 5.17.050(j), any equipment that is not installed underground shall be screened by 
structures, topography, or vegetation to the maximum extent feasible. Per Section 5.17.050(k), 
all coaxial cables, conduit lines and electrical boxes shall be placed underground or within 
approved structures. All proposed above-ground equipment is located within the 30’ x 40’ area 
and are screened from public view. 

Per Section 5.17.050(m), applicants are encouraged to design WCFs to serve as public art, 
flagpoles or artificial natural features such as trees or rocks. Per Section 5.17.050(n) unless 
otherwise required by Town, County, State or Federal rules or regulations, WCFs shall have a 
non‐reflective finish and shall be painted a neutral color consistent with the predominant 
background color. The proposed stealth monument structure is designed with a textured finish 
and painted a light grey color to match the stone and concrete structures at Holy Cross 
Cemetery. A condition has been added to maintain the facility and its visual appearance. 

Per Section 5.17.050(r), disturbance of existing topography and on-site vegetation shall be 
minimized, unless such disturbance would substantially reduce the visual impacts of the facility. 
Existing large trees will not be disturbed.  Some existing trees will require pruning to allow for 
proper clearance along the access road.   

(c) The proposed facility is in compliance with all FCC (Federal Communications 
Commission) and CPUC (California Public Utilities Commission) requirements, 
and is not otherwise detrimental to public safety, community welfare, and 
health, considering aspects over which the Town has purview.  

Per the Radio Frequency Emissions Compliance Report submitted with the project application 
(Attachment E), the project will not expose members of the general public to hazardous levels 
of Radio frequency (“RF”) energy at the ground or in adjacent buildings. At worst-case 
predictions, RF energy levels associated with the operation of the WCF will be well below the 
federal standards for limiting public exposure to RF energy; therefore, it will not result in effects 
detrimental to public safety, community welfare, and health.  

(d) The proposed facility will not create a nuisance or enforcement problem 
within the neighborhood. 

The proposed facility is a stealth WCF located within Holy Cross Cemetery. The property is 
zoned for cemetery use and will not be impacted by the proposed use. Aesthetically, existing 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 4 of 12 
 

vegetation will almost fully screen the WCF from public views as shown on the photo 
simulations attached as Attachment F. The stealth monument design further mitigates any 
visual impact from the proposed WCF. 

(e) The proposed facility incorporates general site considerations, including site 
layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings, 
vehicular access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, 
public safety and similar elements that provide a desirable environment for 
the development.  

The proposed WCF is sited within a 30’ x 40’ lease area at Holy Cross Cemetery. The lease area 
can be accessed through the driveway on Mission Road and an internal maintenance road that 
runs along the west side of the property. As a condition of approval, the access road shall be 
widened to 12 feet wide, improved with an all-weather surface, and clear or prune vegetation 
to improve emergency vehicle access. The WCFs operation and appearance will have minimal 
impact on existing site layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings, 
vehicular access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, or public safety.  

(f) The proposed design incorporates general architectural considerations, 
including the character, scale and quality of the design, the architectural 
relationship with the site and other buildings, building materials, colors, 
screening of exterior appurtenances, exterior lighting and similar elements 
that ensure the compatibility of this development with other buildings and 
structures on the subject property and adjacent properties, as well as each 
element being consistent with the architectural style of the building or 
structure.  

The proposed facility is a WCF housed within an 85’ high monument structure with equipment 
cabinets on the ground. The monument structure is designed and will be painted to match the 
design and character of other buildings in Holy Cross Cemetery and will appear to be an 
additional monument structure. Only limited lighting visible close to ground level is proposed. 
Further, existing large trees are located around the facility to provide screening.  

(g) The proposed design incorporates general landscape considerations, 
including the location, type, size, color, texture and coverage of plant 
materials, provisions for irrigation, maintenance and protection of landscaped 
areas and similar elements that ensure visual relief, including appropriate 
visual screening.  

The design of the proposed monument structure blends in with the existing structures and 
landscaping. With the height of the proposed structure, the existing, tall, mature trees provide 
screening. No additional plantings are proposed or are needed.  

(h) The proposed facility is designed to blend with the surrounding environment, 
with minimal visual impact.  

With the surrounding landscape screening, stealth design of the monument structure, the 
structure will visually blend with the surroundings.  



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 5 of 12 
 

(i) The proposed facility is designed, sited, and will be operated in a manner that 
does not adversely impact adjacent properties by noise, traffic, aesthetic, or 
other impacts over which the Town has purview.  

Provided that the proposed WCF complies with conditions of Use Permit approval, the WCF’s 
operation will be inconspicuous, its presence not noticeable, and it will not have any impacts on 
adjacent properties.  

3. Conditions of Approval 

The City Council approves the Conditional Use Permit to install an AT&T wireless 
communications facility at Holy Cross Cemetery at 1500 Mission Road (011-370-180), subject to 
the full and faithful performance of each of the general terms and conditions set forth in this 
Resolution and the following project-specific conditions: 

Conditional Use Permit 

(a) Allowed Uses.  This Conditional Use Permit shall specifically allow the operations of the 
Sprint wireless communications facility and associated equipment at the 30’ x 40’ area at 
Holy Cross Cemetery as specified in application materials received March 3, 2021 and on 
file with the Planning Department. Any additional proposed uses shall require review by 
the Town of Colma as an amendment to this Conditional Use Permit. 

(b) Expiration. The Use Permit for a WCF shall expire ten years from the date of approval 
unless the Use Permit is renewed by the Town. An application for renewal shall be 
submitted at least six months prior to the expiration of the Use Permit. 

(c) Minor Changes.  Minor changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively 
by the City Planner or designee. 

(d) Conduit. All proposed cables, conduits and electrical boxes for the proposed project will 
be placed underground or be concealed. 

(e) USA North.  The applicant should contact USA North to assure that there are no utilities 
that conflict with the proposed improvements (USA North: 811/1-800-227-2600). 

(f) Stormwater Treatment. Plans submitted for construction permit(s) should incorporate 
stormwater treatment/Low Impact Development options for small projects such as 
infiltration basins or landscape-based measures like bioswales for stormwater drainage 
and treatment from hardscape areas. 

(g) Construction plans. The construction plans shall include an erosion & Sediment control 
plan, construction BMP plan, and a construction staging plan. 

(h) Recorded Easements. If the proposed easements on the plans are recorded, the 
applicant shall provide copies of recorded easements prior to issuance of Town 
permit(s). 

(i) Colma Fire Protection District Requirements. The following requirements of the Colma 
Fire Protection District shall be met prior to operation of the wireless facility: 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 6 of 12 
 

(i) The applicant shall apply for fire permits to install the new generator and fuel 
tank. Plans for the new generator shall include signage and location of the fire 
extinguisher. 

(ii) The area within 10 feet of the generator and its exhaust pipe shall be clear of 
vegetation. 

(iii) For further information on the requirements of the District, the applicant may 
contact the Deputy Fire Marshal, Bill Pardini at bpardini@colmafd.org or 
(650)740-2073.  

(j) Other Approvals. The permittee shall obtain all other applicable permits, approvals, and 
agreements necessary to install and operate the WCF in conformance with federal, 
state, and local laws, rules, and regulations. 

(k) Permits.  The Permittee shall obtain all necessary permits, including Building Permits and 
an Encroachment Permit for any work in the public right-of-way, prior to construction.  

(l) Building Permit Submittal. The applicant shall submit a soils report, engineering plans 
and energy documents with the building permit submittal. 

(m) Property lease. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a signed 
copy of the property lease agreement, exclusive of financial terms of the agreement, 
including provisions for the removal of the telecommunications facility within 60 days of 
abandonment. 

(n) Structural Integrity. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit 
a letter or report signed by a licensed profession engineer specializing in structural 
engineering documenting the ability of the structure to accept antennas. In addition, the 
letter or report should include the structure’s capacity for additional collocated antennas 
and the precise point at which the antennas should be mounted. 

(o) Security Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a 
security plan which includes emergency contact information, location of main breaker 
switch, emergency procedures to follow, and any other information as required by the 
City Planner. 

(p) Maintenance Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a 
description of the anticipated maintenance program and back-up generator power 
testing schedule. 

(q) New Address. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall apply for a 
new address for the wireless facility. 

(r) Facility Maintenance. All WCFs and related equipment, including but not limited to 
fences, cabinets, poles, and landscaping, shall be maintained in good working condition 
over the life of the Use Permit. This shall include keeping the structures maintained to 
the visual standards established at the time of approval. The facility shall remain free 
from trash, debris, litter, graffiti, and other forms of vandalism. Any damage shall be 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 7 of 12 
 

repaired as soon as is practicable, and in no instance more than ten (10) calendar days 
from the time of notification by the Town or after discovery by the permittee. All of the 
wireless communications facility equipment must be removed upon the expiration of the 
permit approval and/or when no longer in operation, whichever occurs first. 

(s) Performance Bond. Prior to issuance of a building or electrical permit, the permittee 
shall file with the Town, and shall maintain in good standing throughout the term of the 
approval, a performance bond or other surety or another form of security for the 
removal of the facility in the event that the use is abandoned or the permit expires, or is 
revoked, or is otherwise terminated. The security shall be in the amount equal to 150 
percent of the cost of physically removing the wireless communications facility and all 
related facilities and equipment on the site. The permittee shall reimburse the Town for 
staff time associated with the processing and tracking of the bond, based on established 
hourly rates. Reimbursement shall be paid when the security is posted. 

(t) Construction & Maintenance House. The permittee shall make a good faith effort to 
minimize project-related disruptions to adjacent properties. Site improvement and 
construction work, including setup, loading or unloading of materials or equipment, 
performed as a part of this project is restricted to the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m., Monday through Saturday. No noise-generating construction work shall be 
performed on Sundays or national holidays. Non-emergency maintenance is restricted to 
the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. No noise-
generating maintenance work shall be performed on Saturdays, Sundays, or national 
holidays. Emergency maintenance and repairs are exempt from the restricted hours. 
Violation of this condition may result in issuance of a Stop Work Order and 
administrative Citations. 

(u) Height Verification. The property owner(s) or permittee shall submit a certification 
letter from a California certified land surveyor or registered civil engineer, which verifies 
that structure height complies with the approved construction drawings. 

(v) Encourage Collocation. Where the wireless communication facility site is capable of 
accommodating a collocated facility upon the same site, the owner and operator of the 
existing facility shall allow another carrier to collocate its facilities and equipment 
thereon, provided the parties can mutually agree upon reasonable terms and conditions. 

(w) Nuisances. The Permittee shall not allow any nuisance to be maintained at the premises. 

(x) Town Access. The Town reserves the right of its employee, agents, and designated 
representatives to inspect permitted facilities and property upon reasonable notice to the 
permittee. In case of an emergency or risk of imminent harm to persons or property 
within the vicinity of permitted facilities, the Town reserves the right to enter upon the 
site of such facilities and to support, disable, or remove those elements of the facilities 
posing an immediate threat to public health and safety. The Town shall make an effort 
to contact the permittee, prior to disabling or removing wireless communications facility 
elements. 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 8 of 12 
 

(y) Contact Information. The permittee shall maintain on file with the Town and onsite at 
the wireless communications facility contact information of all parties responsible for 
maintenance of the facility. 

(z) RF Emission Monitoring. WCFs, whether operating alone or in conjunction with other 
facilities, shall not generate radio frequency emissions in excess of the standards 
established by the Federal Communications Commission. Within one (1) month after 
construction of the wireless communications facility and once every three (3) years 
thereafter, the property owner(s) or permittee shall submit a current RF exposure 
report, prepared by a professional engineer to the Planning Services Division, to ensure 
that no modifications to the site, surrounding environment, or equipment wear and tear 
have caused an increase in RF exposure. In the event of an increase over accepted 
levels is detected, the permittee shall be responsible for immediately making the 
necessary adjustments to comply with FCC standards. 

(aa) Abandonment 

(iv) Each permittee who intends to abandon or terminate the use of any WCF shall 
notify the Town of such intentions no less than sixty (60) days prior to the final 
day of use. Said notification shall be in writing, shall specify the date of 
termination, the date the WCF will be removed, and the method of removal. 

(v) Non-operation, disuse (including, but not limited to, cessation of wireless 
services) or disrepair for ninety (90) days or more shall constitute abandonment 
by the permittee under this subchapter. The City Planner shall send a written 
notice of abandonment to the permittee.  

(vi) Upon abandonment, the Use Permit shall become null and void. Absent a timely 
request for a hearing pursuant to subdivision (e) of this section, the permittee 
must, at the permittee’s expense, physically remove the WCF within ninety (90) 
days from the date of the abandonment notice. The WCF shall be removed in 
accordance with applicable health and safety requirements, and the site upon 
which the WCF was located shall be restored to the condition that existed prior 
to the installation of the WCF, or as required by the community City Planner. The 
permittee shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits for the removal 
of the WCF and site restoration. 

(vii) At any time after ninety (90) days following abandonment, the City Planner may 
have the WCF removed and restore the premises as he/she deems appropriate. 
The Town may, but shall not be required to, store the removed WCF (or any part 
thereof). The WCF permittee shall be liable for the entire cost of such removal, 
repair, restoration, and storage. The Town may, in lieu of storing the removed 
WCF, convert it to the Town’s use, sell it, or dispose of it in any manner deemed 
appropriate by the Town. 

(viii) The permittee may request a hearing before a hearing officer appointed by the 
City Manager regarding the notice of abandonment, provided a written hearing 
request is received by the City Planner within 10 days of the date of the notice of 
abandonment. The appeal hearing shall be conducted pursuant to Subchapter 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 9 of 12 
 

1.12 of the Colma Municipal Code. The hearing officer shall issue a written 
decision. The decision of the hearing officer regarding abandonment of the WCF 
shall constitute the final administrative decision of the Town and shall not be 
appealable to the City Council. Failure to file a timely hearing request means the 
notice of abandonment is final and the WCF shall be removed within 90 days 
from the date of the abandonment notice. A Use Permit for a WCF may be 
revoked pursuant to Section 5.03.430. 

4. General Conditions 

(bb) This Conditional Use Permit shall run with the land and be freely and automatically 
transferred to each user of the property described herein, subject to each of the specific 
and general conditions herein. As used in this Conditional Use Permit, the word 
“Permittee” shall mean each person using the property pursuant to the permit granted 
herein, including successors to the person first obtaining the permit 

(cc) The Permittee must comply with all applicable federal, state and municipal laws, codes 
and regulations, including the California Building and Fire Codes. Nothing herein shall be 
construed as authorizing any approvals under, or any exceptions to any other law, code 
or regulation, or as authorizing any change to the occupancy classification of the 
premises or any buildings thereon as defined on the California Building Code. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing:  

(i) The Permittee shall maintain an annual Colma Business Registration; 

(ii) Prior to issuance of a Business Registration, the Permittee shall arrange for the 
project site to be inspected for Fire and Life Safety requirements of California 
Fire Code by the Colma Fire Protection District; and 

(dd) Indemnification. The permittee and property owner shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Colma, its agents, officers, officials, and employees (i) from all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions or proceedings 
(collectively “Actions”) brought against the Town or its agents, officers officials, or 
employees to challenge, attack seek to modify, set aside, void or annul this approval, 
and (ii) from any damages, liabilities, claims, suites, or causes of action of any kind or 
form, whether for personal injury, death or property damage, arising out of or in 
connection with the activities or performance of the permittee or the land owner or any 
of each one’s agents, employees, licensees, contractors, subcontractors, or independent 
contractors, pursuant to the approval issued by the Town. Further, permittees shall be 
strictly liable for interference caused by their WCFs with the Town’s communications 
systems. The permittee shall be responsible for costs of determining the source of the 
interference, all costs associated with eliminating the interference, and all costs arising 
from third party claims against the Town attributable to the interference. In the event 
the Town becomes aware of any such actions or claims the Town shall promptly notify 
the property owner and shall reasonably cooperate in the defense. It is expressly agreed 
that the Town shall have the right to approve, which approval shall not be unreasonable 
withheld, the legal counsel providing the Town’s defense, and the property owner 
and/or permittee (as applicable) shall reimburse Town for any costs and expenses 
directly and necessarily incurred by the Town in the course of the defense.  



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 10 of 12 
 

(ee) The Conditional Use Permit may be modified or revoked should it be determined that:   

(i) The property is being operated or maintained in a manner that is detrimental to 
the public health or welfare, is materially injurious to property or improvements in 
the vicinity, constitutes a public nuisance, or is contrary to any law, code or 
regulation, or;  

(ii) If the Permittee fails to comply with and satisfy the conditions herein. 

(ff) The Permittee must agree to comply with each and every term and condition herein by 
countersigning a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the 
City Clerk no more than 45 days following City Council approval of the permit. If 
Permittee is not the property owner, then the property owner must consent to use of 
the property on the terms and conditions herein by counter-signing a copy of this 
resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the City Clerk no later than 45 days 
following City Council approval of the permit. Failure to return the counter-signed copy 
as specified shall render this permit null and void.  

  



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 11 of 12 
 

* * * * * * 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on May 22, 2021, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      
 
Dated: ____________________  _____________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor  
 
 
 
      Attest: ______________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Res 2021-___ - 1500 Mission Road – Wireless Facility  Page 12 of 12 
 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PROTEST 

The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 66020(d)(1), these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the amount of 
such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. You are 
hereby further notified that the 90-day approval period in which you may protest these fees, 
dedications, reservations, and other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), 
began on date of adoption of this resolution. If you fail to file a protest within this 90-day period 
complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, you will be legally barred from later 
challenging such exactions. 

AGREEMENT 

 

Property Owner/Permittee 

The undersigned agrees to comply with each and every condition set forth in this permit. 

 
 
               
Signature, Property Owner     Date 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 
 
 
             
Signature, Permittee      Date 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 

 



Attachment B

























Attachment C
A

ttachm
ent C





(c) 2007 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. AT&T 
and the AT&T logo are trademarks of AT&T Intellectual Property.

CCL04300 Service Maps

November 23, 2020

Attachment D
A

ttachm
ent D



Exhibit 2 – Existing LTE 700 Coverage

November 23, 2020



November 23, 2020

Exhibit 3 – LTE 700 Coverage – Holy Cross @ RC = 36 ft.

CCL04300



Exhibit 3 – Proposed LTE 700 Coverage – Holy Cross @ RC = 85 ft.

November 23, 2020

CCL04300



November 23, 2020

Exhibit 3 – LTE 700 Coverage – Holy Cross @ RC = 36 ft.



Exhibit 3 – Proposed LTE 700 Coverage – Holy Cross @ RC = 85 ft.

November 23, 2020



CCL04300

Existing Surrounding Sites

November 23, 2020



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment E













Attachment F
A

ttachm
ent F













Staff Report re Capital Budget Study Session (Part 2)  Page 1 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 12, 2021 
SUBJECT: FY 2021-22 Capital Budget Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks City Council feedback and direction on: 

• FY 2021-22 through FY 2026-27 Capital Program
• Authorization to transfer as identified in the Executive Summary and Analysis sections of

this report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At tonight’s City Council Meeting, the Council will receive a report that reviews the Town’s capital 
improvement plan for FY 2021-22 through FY 2026-27. The capital improvement plan document 
includes; the project scope, FY 2020-21 project status, FY 2021-22 work plan, project funding 
and spending plan through FY 2026-27 and is attached (Attachment A).  

Overall, the FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Budget is $1.08 million, with $195,000 in projected 
carryover project budget from FY2020-21, $40,000 in carryover project budget from reinstating 
a deferred project, and $846,000 in new funding requests. The proposed funding sources for the 
FY 2021-22 Capital Program include the following transfers: $532,025 from the General Fund 
(11), $72,600 from Measure A (22), $31,950 from Measure W (26), and $45,450 from Gax Tax 
& RMRA (21). The program also includes a carryover of $80,000 from FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23. 

The study session will center in on City Council’s review, questions, and comments regarding the 
FY 2021-22 through FY 2026-27 Capital Program Budget.  Feedback on the capital program will 
be incorporated in to the FY 2021-22 Proposed Budget, which is scheduled to be presented on 
May 26, 2021, and the budget adoption, scheduled to be presented at the June 9, 2021 Regular 
City Council meeting.  

Item #8



Staff Report re Capital Budget Study Session (Part 2)  Page 2 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

FISCAL IMPACT 

City Council review and direction on the FY 2021-22 Proposed Capital Program will not impact the 
current FY 2020-21 Budget.  It will impact the FY 2021-22 final proposed budget to be adopted 
on June 9, 2021. 

BACKGROUND 

On April 28, 2021, the City Council reviewed and provided feedback on the Town’s FY 2021-22 
preliminary operating budget. The preliminary budget includes a $905,025 capital program with 
$665,025 in Capital Funds and $240,000 in the Vehicle replacement fund, as shown in Table 1. 

 

The preliminary capital program did not account for any potential carryover of unspent capital 
budgets from FY 2020-21 to FY 2021-22.  After a closer review of the Town’s capital program, 
staff identified $315,000 of unspent capital to be carried over to FY 2021-22 ($235,000) and FY 
2022-23 ($80,000). Staff also reduced new funding requests from $905,025 to $846,000, 
resulting in an overall FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget of $1.08 million. 

ANALYSIS 

Table 2, below, summarizes the FY 2021-22 CIP Budget.  The capital improvement plan document 
includes FY 2020-21 project status, FY 2021-22 project plan, and potential future spending is 
available in Attachment A of this report. 

  

Table 1

Town-wide Financial
General 

Funds

Special 
Revenues & 
Debt Funds

Capital 
Funds

Vehicle
Replacement

Fund
Enterprise 

Funds Total
Operating Activities

Revenues 17,531,264$   284,050$         2,000$             256,500$         1,309,765$     19,383,580$   
Expenditures 17,876,721     517,697           665,025           240,000           1,297,375       20,596,818     

Operating Surplus / (Deficit) (345,457)         (233,647)         (663,025)         16,500             12,390             (1,213,239)      

Other Activities
Capital Investment (665,025)         665,025           -                    
Net Transfers (535,756)         297,569           -                    -                    238,187           -                    

Change in Fund Balance (1,546,238)      63,922             2,000                16,500             250,577           (1,213,239)      



Staff Report re Capital Budget Study Session (Part 2)  Page 3 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

FY 2021-22 Capital Program Overview 

 

As shown in Table 2, above, the Town has added four new projects, continuing six projects from 
FY 2020-21, closing out two projects from FY 2020-21, and continuing to fund three ongoing 
programs.  

The four new projects include the following: 

• Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance (906). The goal 
of the project is to identify and repair or replace sections of the roadway that needs 
attention. This annual program will be an ongoing program and will aim to maintain the 
Town’s Pavement Condition Index (PCI) at above 80.  

• Colma Museum Facility Repair (951). This project will address much needed exterior 
repairs and painting.  

Table 2

FY 2021-22 CIP Budget Project Estimated New Total 

Funded Projects Only Budget Actual Carryover Request Budget

1. Streets, Sidewalk, & Bikeways

Annual Roadway Rehab (906) New 0$                    0$                    0$                    150,000$       150,000$       

El Camino Real Bike & Ped Plan (914) Closed 225,000          239,064          0                       0                       0                       

F-Street Retaining Wall (902) Continue 25,000            25,000            0                       7,000              7,000              

Mission Road Improvement (903) Continue 2,800,000      2,760,000      40,000            0                       40,000            

2. Sewer & Storm Drains

None 0                       0                       0                       0                       0                       

3. City Facilities & Long-Range Plan

Climate Action Plan (994) Closed 35,000            34,557            0                       0                       0                       

Colma Museum Facility Repair (951) New 0                       0                       0                       75,000            75,000            

Creekside Villas Repair (952) Continue 95,000            55,000            40,000            0                       40,000            

Facility Parking Lot Upgrades (953) New 0                       0                       0                       99,025            99,025            

General Plan Update (991) Continue 653,000          578,000          75,000            0                       75,000            

Housing Element Update (996) Continue 80,000            20,000            40,000            0                       40,000            

Zoning Code Update (997) Continue 100,000          20,000            40,000            0                       40,000            

4. Major Equipment, Technology & Fleet

Equipment Purchase and Repl (984) Ongoing 250,000          217,661          0                       201,000          201,000          

Financial Software Rplc (965) New 0                       0                       0                       100,000          100,000          

IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986) Ongoing 50,000            50,000            0                       50,000            50,000            

Vehicle Replacement (987) Ongoing 20,000            19,973            0                       164,000          164,000          

Total Project Budget 4,333,000$    4,019,255$    235,000$       846,025$       1,081,025$    

Summary
Total New (4) 0$                    0$                    0$                    424,025$       424,025$       
Total Continue (6) 3,753,000      3,458,000      235,000          7,000              242,000          
Total Closed (2) 260,000          273,621          0                       0                       0                       
Total Ongoing (3) 320,000          287,634          0                       415,000          415,000          

Total Project Budget 4,333,000$    4,019,255$    235,000$       846,025$       1,081,025$    

2021/22 ProgramSince Inception



Staff Report re Capital Budget Study Session (Part 2)  Page 4 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

• Facility Parking Lot Upgrades (953). This project is a two part project with the 
parking lot upgrades at Creekside Villas and Police Station in FY 2021-22 and Colma 
Community Center, Museum and Corporation Yard parking lots in FY 2024-25. 

• Financial Software Replacement (965). In recent months, a number of local agencies 
are migrating to a new financial system. Staff believes that Eden support will begin to 
drop in the coming year and the Town will need to migrate to a new financial system 
soon. The migration will take roughly a year to align with fiscal and calendar year financial 
functions and the start of the project will include a needs assessment. Total estimated 
project cost is $550,000. 

The six projects continuing into FY 2021-22 are as followed: 

• F-Street Retaining Wall (902). The F-Street Wall is failing and needs immediate 
attention. The project was added as part of the mid-year review to address the repair 
needs of the F-Street Retaining Wall. The design phase is scheduled for completion by 
early summer and the construction phase to be completed by December 2021. The project 
is requesting an additional $7,000 for the design phase and the cost of the construction 
phase is pending the result of the design.  

• Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement (903). The project is near 
completion. The phase that will continue into FY 2021-22 is the closeout phase where the 
project manager will finalize administrative filings and grant submissions. 

• Creekside Villas Repair (952). This project was programmed in FY 2019-20 with the 
exterior painting completed in FY 2019-20. The remaining project budget of $40,000 has 
been carried over to address  other repairs needed as listed in the project description (See 
Attachment A). 

• General Plan Update (991). The work plan for FY 2021-22 is to release the final draft 
for the General Plan and EIR by Fall of 2021 and for City Council adoption by December 
2021. 

• Housing Element Update (996) and Zoning Code Update (997). Both projects are 
the next phase in the completion of the General Plan Update (991) project. Both projects 
are legally mandated and were added as part of the mid-year financial review. Staff 
anticipates 50% of unspent capital budget will be spent in FY 2021-22 and the remaining 
in FY 2022-23.  

Staff is expecting to close out the El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (914) and Climate 
Action Plan (994). Per Table 2 above, the El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (914) project 
appears to be over budget by $14,000. Staff is reviewing the project history to confirm whether 
there was a misallocation.  

The Town maintains three ongoing programs to separate much needed improvements from the 
operating budget. The FY 2021-22 ongoing programs are listed below. The Annual Roadway 
Rehab (906) project, discussed above, will join this list beginning in FY 2022-23. 

• Equipment Purchase and Replacement (984). The FY 2020-21 project budget 
includes the police dispatch center and radio system upgrade. The project began in 
FY 2019-20 and was completed in FY 2020-21. The project plan for FY 2021-22 is the 
purchase of body worn cameras and the replacement of the in-car cameras. Consolidating 



Staff Report re Capital Budget Study Session (Part 2)  Page 5 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

the body worn cameras and the in-car cameras allows for better pricing and added 
features. 

• IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986). Annually, the Town invests $50,000 into the IT 
infrastructure, including replacing old computers, upgrading firewalls, servers, switches, 
and routers, and other much needed IT improvements. The Town also engages the same 
IT consultants for regular technology support that is part of the operating budget. 

• Vehicle Replacement (987). Annually, the Town transfers $250,000 into the fleet 
replacement fund (61) to be used for scheduled vehicle replacement. For FY 2021-22, the 
Town plans to replace three aging police vehicles. The replacement schedule is based on 
years of services and mileage. Staff plans to review and update the fleet replacement 
schedule in FY 2021-22. The last assessment was in FY 2018-19. 

As mentioned above, staff is expecting a budget amendment later in FY2021-22, which will be 
needed for the F-Street Retaining Wall (902) project once the design is complete and the Town 
has the final Plan, Specifications, & Estimate (PS&E). The PS&E drives the construction scope and 
cost. Staff expects the PS&E will be available by mid-summer 2021. 

Another project on staff’s radar but not in the proposed FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Program 
is the possible Mission Road landscaping project along the frontage of the Holy Cross property. 
Staff expects this project to be added as part of the budget amendment post budget adoption on 
June 9, 2021. 

Funding Sources 

Since FY 2017-18, the Town began committing a portion of the 
General Fund surplus in the Capital Improvement Fund. Staff 
projects that  Capital Funds (31 & 32) has a total available fund 
of $1.55 million, as shown in Table 3 to the right. 

The $1.55 million is sufficient to fund the FY 2021-22 Capital 
Program. As seen during the Covid 19 pandemic, the capital reserve played an important role in 
supporting essential capital projects without adding financial stress to the Town’s General Fund. 
As part of the mid-year financial review, the Town had sufficient capital funds to allocate $140,000 
to the F-Street Retaining Wall (902), Housing Element Update (996), and Zoning Code Update 
(997). Additionally, the Proposed 5-Year Capital Program has a total future spending plan of $56.7 
million, with $51.4 remaining unfunded, as seen in Table 4 below. This summary does not include 
the Hillside Blvd project of $9.1 million. 

 

Table 4

2021-2027 Capital Program Total

Future Spending Plan 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Unfunded Future

1. Streets, Sidewalk, & Bikeways 975,000$         400,000$         792,900$         0$                      0$                      51,350,000$   53,517,900$   

2. Sewer & Storm Drains 70,000              95,000              70,000              0                        0                        0                        235,000           

3. City Facilities & Long-Range Plan 1,095,000        270,000           99,025              0                        0                        0                        1,464,025        

4. Major Equipment, Technology & Fleet 670,000           245,000           185,000           180,000           180,000           0                        1,460,000        

Total Future Spending Plan 2,810,000$     1,010,000$     1,146,925$     180,000$         180,000$         51,350,000$   56,676,925$   

Table 3

Capital Reserve Funds Total

Capital Reserves (31) 617,333$         

Street Capital (32) 930,889           

Total 1,548,222$     



Staff Report re Capital Budget Study Session (Part 2)  Page 6 of 6 
May 12, 2021 

Staff recommends preserving the capital reserves funds and transfer $532,025 from General 
Fund (11), $72,600 from Measure A (22), $31,950 from Measure W (26), and $45,450 from Gax 
Tax & RMRA (21). 

Reasons For the Recommended Action/Findings  

Providing for early public discussion of the Town’s Financial Plan allows an opportunity for staff 
to evaluate and incorporate any comments from the City Council and new items that may not be 
included in the baseline budget.  

Council Adopted Values 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
considering the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial stability. 

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public involvement. 

Alternatives 

In addition to providing feedback on items in the Analysis section, the City Council may provide 
direction to staff on budgetary items to be added or be removed.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff is requesting comments from the City Council and the public on the capital program. Another 
Budget Study Session will be held on May 26, 2021 to consolidate all feedback from the City 
Council and the public for this meeting, and the April 28, 2021 Budget Study Session. A public 
hearing to adopt the FY 2021-22 Proposed Budget will be held on June 9, 2021.  A more detailed 
budget document will be provided in advance of these meetings. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Proposed Capital Program – Export from OpenGov. OpenGov version is available at this 
link:  https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/VVMGeZFMe  

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/VVMGeZFMe


2021-22 CIP 00 Cover

(The budget presentation has been adapted for OpenGov Stories platform. The charts and 
tables have changed but the narratives are the same.)

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a planning document that covers the construction and 
maintenance of major projects and facilities as well as major studies. The CIP also serves as a budget 
that provides the means to pay for these projects. 

This section includes the Town's Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2021-22 through FY 
2026-27. 

Overall, the FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Budget is $1.08million, with $195,000 in projected 
carryover project budget from FY2020-21, $40,000 in carryover project budget from reinstating a deferred 
project, and $846,000 in new funding requests. The program also includes a carryover of $80,000 from 
FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23. 

CIP Project Categories
Colma’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) lists projects in four distinct categories, below. Click on the 
images below to get to the project description, FY 2020-21 status, FY 2021-22 work plan, and funding 
needs for FY 2021-22 through FY 2026-27. 

Town of Colma, California www.colma.ca.gov

Capital Improvement Plan
FY 2021-22 Budget

Category 1
Streets, Sidewalks & Bikeways

Category 2
Sewer & Storm Drain

Category 3
City Facilities & Long-Range Plan

Category 4
Major Equipment, Technology, & Fleet

1

Attachment A

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
http://www.colma.ca.gov/


2021-22 CIP 00 Cover

Project Status
The project status is shown on each capital project. The statuses are Active, Closed, Future or 
Unfunded.

Active - existing or new CIP projects that have available funding and activities (spending) in FY 
2021-22.
Closed - CIP projects that have been completed or have been closed out. These projects will only 
appear in future CIP budgets if they have project expenditures during the prior three years.
Future - CIP projects that are programmed for FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27. Project budget and 
funding are identified, but are not earmarked.
Unfunded - CIP projects that are Town priorities but are currently without budgeted funds. 
Unfunded projects will be reviewed annually during the Town Budget process to see if funds are 
available for construction and if the proposed projects are ready to move from the Unfunded to the 
Budgeted projects list.

This will provide more clarity in the Capital Improvement Budget. It will also identify projects that are 
budgeted, projects that are ready to be closed (and dropped from future CIP budgets) and future 
projects that are currently unfunded today but are in the developmental stage awaiting conceptual 
design approval, plans and specifications, and additional funding from the Town and/or outside 
sources.

FY 2020-21 Capital Improvement Program 
Overview
During to the Covid 19 pandemic, the Town focused on projects that met the Town's Covid 19 
pandemic goals. These goals include ensuring public safety, preserving reserves, and utilizing all 
available grant funding. FY 2019-20 Active Projects that met these goals were El Camion Real Bicycle 
& Pedestrian Plan (914), Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement (903), General Plan Update 
(991)991) and Climate Action Plan (994). The Town continued to fund the IT Infrastructure Upgrades 
(986) as online and virtual office support increased during the Covid 19 pandemic. By March 10, 2021, 
the City Council approved the addition of three capital programs:

1. F-Street Retaining Wall (902) - ensuring public safety
2. Housing Element Update (996) - utilizing grant funding
3. Zoning Code Update (997) - subset of General Plan Update (991)

2

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/zUSKwdxcb


2021-22 CIP 00 Cover

Of all the projects listed above, Climate Action Plan (994) and El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian 
Plan (914) are completed and will close as of June 30, 2021. All other projects will continue into FY 
2021-22, with the IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986) continuing as an ongoing program. The projected 
total carryover, as of April 30, 2021, is $235,000, with $80,000 programmed for FY 2022-23. Actual 
carryover will depend on actual project spending through June 30, 2021 and will be part of the year-
end process. 

NOTE: Ongoing programs typically do not have carryover. The unspent portion is released back to the 
reserve and new funding is allocated in the new fiscal year. Ongoing programs are used as a tool to 
separate purchases and improvements from the operating budget and is used for capitalization. 

FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Plan 
Highlight
In addition to the six projects listed above that will continue into FY 2021-22, the Town has added five 
additional projects, continues two ongoing projects, and re-establishes one deferred project. 

Additional Projects:

Ongoing Projects:

Deferred Projects:

The FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Budget also includes a budget increase of $7,000 for the design 
phase of the F-Street Retaining Wall (902) project. 

Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance (906) - $150,0001.
Colma Museum Facility Repair and Painting (951) - $75,0002.
Facility Parking Lot Upgrades (953) - $99,0253.
Financial Software Replacement (965) - $100,0004.
Police Body Worn and In-Car Cameras [part of the Equipment Purchase and Replacement Project

(984)] - $201,000
5. 

IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986) - $50,0001.
Vehicle Replacement (987) - $164,0002.

Creekside Villas Repair (952) - $40,000 - included in the carryover budget discussed above.1.

3



2021-22 CIP 00 Cover

Project Funding and Spending Plan for FY 
2021-22 through FY 2026-27
The Funding Plan table below summarizes the revenue sources that the Town plans to use to support 
the capital program.  

The Capital Program bar chart below summarizes the projects by categories. The corresponding table 
is below the bar chart. To get to the table, use the scroll bar on the right of the bar chart. At first glance, 
the table shows the total program by fiscal year and by categories. The project list is also available in 
the table by clicking on the triangles on the left of the categories. 

4



2021-22 CIP 00 Cover

Updated On 6 May, 2021

Reset

Broken down by

Capital Program Expenses

History  



Visualization

2016-17
Actual

2018-19
Actual

2020-21
Budget

2020-21 
Est Actual

2022-23 
Projection

2024-25 
Projection

2026-27 
Projection

Fiscal Year

0.0

1.0M

2.0M

3.0M

4.0M

5.0M

6.0M

7.0M

8.0M

D
ol

la
rs

Back

CIP - Cate 1 - Street

CIP - Cate 2 - Storm & Sewer

CIP - Cate 3 - City Fac & Lo…

CIP - Cate 4 - Major Eqpt, T…

Sort A to Z 

    

Help  Share 

Reasonable Accommodation:
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who 
requires a modification or accommodation to view the document, should direct such a request to Pak 
Lin, Administrative Services Director, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov Please allow two 
business days for your request to be processed.

Town of Colma

1198 El Camino Real

Town Website

Powered by OpenGov

5



2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

(The budget presentation has been adapted for OpenGov 
Stories platform. The charts and tables have changed but the 
narratives are the same.)

Active Projects

Town of Colma, California www.colma.ca.gov

Streets, Sidewalks & Bikeways Projects
Capital Improvement Plan

FY 2021-22 Budget

6

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/VVMGeZFMe
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w
http://www.colma.ca.gov/


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and 
Preventative Maintenance (906)
Project Scope
The Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance Program includes minor repairs, 
such as crack sealing, and major rehabilitation, such as slurry seal and mill and fill. The goal of the 
program is to maintain the Town’s Pavement Condition Index (PCI) at 80 or above, the current PCI 
Townwide has been rated at 79.  The multiyear project budget includes design, construction 
management and construction costs. The Annual Roadway Rehabilitation Preventive Maintenance 
Project is broken into design and construction phases for the 300 Block of F Street, which is scheduled 
for 2021/22; Colma Boulevard and 400 Block of Serramonte Boulevard are scheduled for 2022/23; 
Collins Avenue and Junipero Serra Boulevard are scheduled for 2023/24; and, Hillside Boulevard is 
scheduled for 2024/25. The total project cost for 2021-2025 is estimated at $917,900.

Status as of June 30, 2021
Project was deferred in FY 2019-20 and the funding was reallocated to the Mission Road Project in FY 
2019-20.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
For FY 2021-22, the Public Works Department identified the 300 Block of F Street is in need of a mill 
and fill, (minor roadway reconstruction). Construction documents are estimated to be completed in the 
Fall/Winter of 2021 and the construction is to take place in the Spring of 2022.

Impact on Operation
An effective roadway maintenance program includes minor repairs as part of the operating budget and 
major rehabilitation as part of the Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Program. By 
rehabilitating the roadway when needed, the Town is able to maintain the annual roadway repairs 
budget to $95,900.

Project Funding and Spending Plan
The Annual Roadway Rehabilitation project is an eligible project to utilize the State and County 
allocated Gas Tax and RMRA (21), Measure A (22), Measure W (26), and Measure M grant funding. 

7

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=242991&selection=C3DB98BDC1ECFBF3015C1EA7A5D7CA2E&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

F-Street Retaining Wall (902)
Project Scope
In 2019 the Colma Engineering Department surveyed the retaining wall on F Street. It was determined 
that the failure we are experiencing in the structure is most likley due to poor drainage, thus causing 
the wall to deteriorate. The first phase of the project is design, specifications, plans and construction 
estimates. The second phase includes soliciting bids for construction and construction management 
services.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This project is a priority project. The design phase and Plan, Specifications & Estimates (PS&E) will be 
completed by early Summer of 2021. The construction phase is slated for the Fall of 2021.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
Construction documents will be assembled and ready to bid by August or September 2021.  It is 
anticipated that the start of construction will commence in the September time frame and be completed 
by the November/December time frame. It is estimated that the project will take approximately 60 
calendar days. 

Impact on Operation
The project will decrease maintenance on and around the wall. The one item that will have to be 
continually watched and maintained is the drainage system. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan 

8

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=242990&selection=568B4BF7542A58FE3C45B653A96652A1&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Improvement Project (903)
Close by December 31, 2021

Project Scope:
The Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements Project includes the implementation of 
several safety-related improvements for pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles along Mission Road 
between El Camino Real and Lawndale Boulevard.

Status as of June 30, 2021:
The design phase is completed and the construction phase is nearly completed or will be completed by 
June 30, 2021. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The final phase of the project is the slurry seal and striping. This will be completed by June 30, 2021. 
Thereafter, the project manager will begin the closeout phase, which includes final grant submissions. 

Impact on Operation
The project will provide a safer bicycle and pedestrian path and will mitigate the risk of accidents and 
control the Town’s cost in annual insurance premiums and claims. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

9

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244586&selection=FC67B85884C8A722EACF13BC51373E0E&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2022&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

Future Projects

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 
2022-23 through FY 2026-27

The future unfunded portions of the projects shown above and below are not connected to a fiscal year 
and therefore cannot be included in the charts above. The future unfunded portions are as followed:

El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement (923) - $29.50 million
Lawndale & El Camino Real Landscape & Median (956) - $2.60 million
Serramonte/Collins Roadway Improvement (905) - $19.25 million

The future unfunded projects will be programed depending on the availability of funding and may be 
phased in over time or programmed as a separate project similar to the Serramonte/Serra Center 
Signalization (911) project.

Updated On 6 May, 2021

Reset

Broken down by

CIP - Cate 1 - Street * Expenses

 History  



Visualization

2022-23 
Projection

2023-24
Projection

2024-25 
Projection

2025-26
Projection

2026-27 
Projection

Fiscal Year

0.0

500.0K

250.0K

750.0K

D
ol

la
rs

Back

El Camino Real Bike & Ped …

Lawndale & ECR Landscap…

Serramonte/Collins Rdwy I…

Serramonte/Serra Center …

Sort A to Z 

    

Help  Share 

10

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244586&selection=FC67B85884C8A722EACF13BC51373E0E&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2022&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian 
Improvements (923)
Scheduled for FY 2024-25
Estimated Project Cost: $30.0 million ($500,000 projected for FY 2024-25)

Project Scope

The project includes a re-design of El Camino Real with separated bicycle facilities, continuous 
sidewalks, additional bicycle and pedestrian safety features, new traffic signals, landscaping, and a 
reconfiguration of the Mission Road (“the Y”) intersection. The project presents a vision for residents 
and visitors to travel safely, comfortably, and with ease.

Status as of June 30, 2021
None. New future project.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
Design phase scheduled to start in FY 2024-25, pending grant funding availability. 
Total project cost per the final EL Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (914) is $30.0 million.

Impact on Operation
There will be an increse in landscaping maintenance and irrigation costs. The proposed improvements 
and beautification enhancements will assist in making the shopping experience and visting the various 
cemeteries a safer, and memorable experience.

11



2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

Lawndale and El Camino Real Landscape and 
Median (956)
Scheduled for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $2.75 million ($150,000 projected for FY 2022-23)

Project Scope:
Median landscapes along Lawndale Boulevard and El Camino Real are in need of rehabilitation. As a 
result of the severe drought in recent years, the State of California has levied irrigation restrictions that 
prevent cities from irrigating its street medians with turf. This resulted in many of the vegetation in the 
Town’s medians along Lawndale Boulevard and El Camino Real will need significant maintenance 
efforts in order to avoid the area being overtaken by intrusive vegetation. Additionally, the landscape 
along the backside of the sidewalk along the Northside of Lawndale Boulevard will also need to be 
addressed in all phases of this project. 

Phase 1 is the conceptual review of the landscaping and public use and enhancement on Lawndale 
Boulevard and El Camino Real - completed in FY 2019-20.
Phase 2 will provide “Shovel Ready” project plans, specifications and estimates (PS&E) and 
preparing a bid package - tentative scheduled for FY 2023-24. 
Phase 3 is the construction phase, which includes awarding the contract, and building and 
inspection services, and construction - future unfunded $2.6 million. 

The study will also focus on green infrastructure possibilities, stormwater enhancements, and 
recreational features. Grant opportunities may be available for Phase 3 of this project.

Status as of June 30, 2021:
The conceptual design (Phase 1) was completed and approved in FY 2019-20. The design phase was 
deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter

This project is a restoration of the existing Lawndale Boulevard Landscape Improvement Project (956). 
The construction phase of the project (Phase 3) is currently unfunded. Staff will be looking for funding 
opportunities to help assist with the construction costs. The feasibility/conceptual study (Phase 1) was 
completed and approved in FY 2019/20. The development of the PS&E (Phase 2) will begin in 
2023/2024. The construction Phase will be evaluated after the completion of PS&E and will depend on 
available funding and Town’s priorities.

Impact on Operation
The rehabilitation of the landscape and median along Lawndale Boulevard and El Camino Real with 
drought-resistant vegetation will increase the aesthetic of the roadway, provide safe crossing, and 
reduce the cost of landscape maintenance.

12



2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

Serramonte/Serra Center Signalization (911)
Scheduled for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $600,000. This project is part of the Serramonte Blvd/Collins Ave Roadway 
Improvement Project (905) - see below

Project Scope
Install traffic signal on Serramonte Blvd at the Serra Center entrance (Target). The project will be 
partially funded by a development impact fee ($26,000). The project may be eligible for Transportation 
and Infrastructure grant (T&I ) of $420k with a local match of $80k. Total project cost $500k for the 
signalization plus design and project management cost.

The signalization of the Serramonte/Serra Center intersection is part of the Serramonte Blvd/Collins 
Ave Master Plan and has been separated for project management purposes. 

Status as of June 30, 2021
New Project. Project is schedule to begin design and if required land aqusition in FY 2021-22, 
construction would be in FY 2022-23.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The required work is contingent on the T&I Grant, if awarded, the project would start in the fall of FY 
2021-22. If the grant is not awarded to the Town, the start of this project would be postponed until 
funds were made available. 

Impact on Operation
Annual operation and maintenance costs as they relate to the street light signal.

13



2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

The primary purpose of the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan (Master Plan) is to 
improve the overall design, function and identity of the corridors with a view to supporting the Town of 
Colma’s main economic engine and one of the premier auto rows in the Bay Area. The Master Plan 
thus addresses the design of the right of way, connections and accessibility, safety and operational 
challenges, identity and character, sustainability, and green infrastructure. ( pease refer to 
https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/serramonte-boulevard-collins-avenue-master-plan/  for 
the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan)

Status as of June 30, 2021
New Project. This project is schedule to begin in FY 2023-24.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
It is anticipated that this project will be broken into phases, scheduling of the various phases of design 
and construction are to be determined.

Phase 1a: Traffic light at Serra Center (separate project)- see project 911 above.
Phase 1b: the island (Collins Ave) - Phase 1B- Close Down the slip lane at Serramonte and Collins 
in the east bound direction, also restripe Serramonte Boulevard simulating the proposed road diet, 
(lane reduction) from the Serramonte/Serra Center entrance to El Camino Real.
Phase 2: Reconstruct Collins Avenue, continous sidewalks, High visable cross walks, street lights, 
landscaping, underground of overhead utilities, car carrier off loading zones for local car 
dealerships.
Phase 3: Continue improvements to Serramonte West.: Lane reduction, sidewalks, landscaping, 
sustainabilty enhancements, street lighting, and accessability improvements, 
Phase 4: landscaping, accessabilty enhancements, street lighting, bike paths, street lights.

Impact on Operation
The project will improve safety and mobility along Serramonte Blvd and Collins Avenue, 
reduces enforcement costs, and enhance economic viability going into the future

Serramonte Blvd/Collins Ave Roadway 
Improvement (905)
Scheduled for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $600,000. 

Project Scope

14

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/serramonte-boulevard-collins-avenue-master-plan/


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Improvement Plan (914)
Close by July 1, 2021

Project Scope
The El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan will provide guidelines and directives 
for a comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian safety program along a portion of the El Camino Real 
corridor, (State Route 82) in the Town of Colma, from Daly City to South San Francisco. The project will 
strive to improve community mobility along this portion of the roadway by creating a vision to increase 
and enhance various modes of transportation, including walking and bicycling, while providing 
opportunities to increase ridership on public transportation. The study will review and implement the 
standards and goals that are stated in the California Transportation Plan 2040, California State Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Plan, Caltrans District 4 Bicycle Plan, San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Master Plan, and Grand Boulevard Initiatives’ Goals. Community outreach is included in the 
study from residents and businesses.

Status as of June 30, 2021
Since this project is completed, the next step in this process will be to take a construction phasing 
approach to this project, thus creating several future projects through a phasing approach. By doing so, 
this will also allow staff to apply for grants specifically as they may apply to that phase.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
None.

Impact on Operation
The completed plan will assist the Town in the design and construction of a safer bicycle and 
pedestrian path, which will mitigate the risk of accident and control the Town’s costs in annual 
insurance premiums and claims. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

Closed Projects

15

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244718&selection=D303D7415D1BD72FA28691DCAA7F026D&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2022&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 01 Streets Project

Reasonable Accommodation:
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who 
requires a modification or accommodation to view the document, should direct such a request to Pak 
Lin, Administrative Services Director, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov Please allow two 
business days for your request to be processed.

Town of Colma

1198 El Camino Real

Town Website

Powered by OpenGov

Project Funding and Spending Plan

16



2021-22 CIP 02 Sewer Projects

(The budget presentation has been adapted for OpenGov 
Stories platform. The charts and tables have changed but the 

narratives are the same.)

Active Projects

No active projects in FY 2021-22.

Town of Colma, California www.colma.ca.gov

Sewer and Storm Drains Projects
Capital Improvement Plan

FY 2021-22 Budget

17

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl
http://www.colma.ca.gov/


2021-22 CIP 02 Sewer Projects

Future Projects

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 
2022-23 through FY 2026-27

There is no future unfunded portion estimated for either of the projects listed above. 

Updated On 6 May, 2021

Reset

Broken down by

CIP - Cate 2 - Storm& Sewer Expenses

 History  



Visualization

2022-23 
Projection

2023-24
Projection

2024-25 
Projection

2025-26
Projection

2026-27 
Projection

Fiscal Year

0.0

50.0K

D
ol

la
rs

Back

Colma Creek Channel (934)

Storm Drain Assess & Map…

Sort A to Z 

    

Help  Share 

18

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl


2021-22 CIP 02 Sewer Projects

Colma Creek Channel Repairs (934)
Scheduled to Start in FY 2022-23

Project Scope
Sections of the Colma Creek concrete channel have deteriorated over the years. Because there are 
different levels of deterioration, a study will need to be performed as phase 1 of this project. This study 
will identify, categorize and map the deteriorated areas, estimate costs to repair those areas and 
identify what outside permits will be required to enter and repair the creek walls and floor. Phase 2 of 
the project will be to prepare plans and specifications for the project along with applying for and 
obtaining all necessary permits to perform the work. Phase 3 will be the preparation of the bid 
documents, project and construction management, and the repair work.

Status as of June 30, 2021
The project has been deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic and continued negotiations with San 
Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District for shared maintenance costs.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The Colma Creek Channel Repair Phase 1 is programmed to take place in FY 2022/23. Phase 2 & 3 
will depend on the results of Phase 1 and the availability of funds. Staff will pursue outside funding to 
assist within offsetting the repair costs.

Impact on Operation
The study will unveil a more precise annual maintenance cost. After repairs are complete, the annual 
creek maintenance is estimated to cost $12,000-$15,000.

19



2021-22 CIP 02 Sewer Projects

Storm Drain System Assessment and Mapping 
(972)
Scheduled to Start in FY 2022-23

Project Scope
The project will review and analyze the Town's 11 miles of the Storm Drain System. The process will be 
to start assessing the current Storm Drainage system by way of internally videotaping the system in its 
current state. The video will provide several insights; it will unveil any needed repairs and unrecorded 
blind or illegal connections. The videotaping equipment used to view the interior of the storm drain lines 
will also have the capabilities of recording the data and allowing the data to be mapped in the Town’s 
Geographical Information System (GIS). The findings that come through the videotaping process will 
allow staff to budget for repairs or enhancements to the storm drain system. Only portions of the 
system will be addressed each year. The project is expected to be a 3-year effort; funding will be 
requested on an annual basis for the specific scope of work for each year.

Status as of June 30, 2021
The project was deferred due to Covid 19 pandemic and has been rescheduled to begin in FY 2022-
23. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The Storm Water Drainage Assessment Project will need to be funded through the Capital Reserves 
on an annual basis. This project is anticipated to start FY 2022-23. Budget $70,000/per year for 3 
years starting FY 2022-23.

Impact on Operation
Future costs for repairs or enhancements will be evaluated as part of the assessment and will be 
budgeted in future operating or capital projects. 

20



2021-22 CIP 02 Sewer Projects

Reasonable Accommodation:
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who 
requires a modification or accommodation to view the document, should direct such a request to Pak 
Lin, Administrative Services Director, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov Please allow two 
business days for your request to be processed.

Town of Colma

1198 El Camino Real

Town Website

Powered by OpenGov

Closed Projects

No active projects are scheduled to close by June 30, 2021.

21



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

(The budget presentation has been adapted for OpenGov 
Stories platform. The charts and tables have changed but the 

narratives are the same.)

Active Projects

Town of Colma, California www.colma.ca.gov

City Facilities & Long-Range Plans
Capital Improvement Plan

FY 2021-22 Budget

22

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/zUSKwdxcb
http://www.colma.ca.gov/


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Colma Museum Facility Repair & Painting (951)
Project Scope
The Historical Museum Facility is currently in need of painting. The work includes minor building 
repairs such as plaster touch up, dry rot repairs, and window and trim repairs or replacement.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021-22 as part of the City Council adopted 2019-2024 Five-
Year Capital Improvement Plan.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
Will begin this project in FY 2021-22.

Impact on Operation
No additional annual maintenance costs are anticipated at this time, outside of normal day to day wear 
and tear on the facility.

Project Funding and Spending Plan

23

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243001&selection=B20A3A112148BE4FDC54D958988287C3&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Creekside Villas Repair and Painting (952)
Project Scope
The Creekside Villas Facility is currently in need of painting and minor trim repair. The work will 
include: 

minor exterior repairs.
window and exterior wood trim repair and/or replacement.
stair and deck resurfacing.
exterior preparation and painting of main building & axillary structures.
replacement of awnings.

Status as of June 30, 2021
Exterior painting was completed 2019. Other exterior repairs were deferred. Remaining $40,000 in the 
budget is for various miscellaneous repairs to the facility.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
Work is anticipated to be completed in the Fall of 2021.

Impact on Operation
Exterior painting is part of the ongoing preventative maintenance effort. Routine painting and 
resurfacing extend the life of the property and prevents more costly repairs. It also prevents an 
increase in operating maintenance cost.

Project Funding and Spending Plan

24

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243004&selection=8DD5D894CD04FF18D548921BEEB85211&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Facility Parking Lot Upgrades and Repairs (953)
Project Scope
Several of the Town owned facility parking lots are in need of reconstruction and/or resurfacing along 
with stripping and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) upgrades. This project will address long term 
parking lot maintenance and reconstruction needs at: Creekside Villas, the Colma Community Center 
and Historical Museum, the Colma Police Station and the Public Works Maintenance Corporation Yard. 
The work will vary from facility to facility ranging from reconstruction, (Mill and fill) to minor surface 
treatments, such as crack sealing and slurry coats. All facilities will be restriped. Installation of 
additional ADA stalls will be considered if feasible for the Colma Community Center parking lot.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This project was deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The Police Station and Creekside Villas parking lots are scheduled for FY 2021-22 at an estimated 
cost of $99,025 and the Colma Community Center, Museum and Corporation Yard parking lots are 
scheduled for FY 2024-25 at an estimated cost of $99,025.

Impact on Operation
No additional annual maintenance costs (Within the 5-year CIP Plan) are anticipated at this time. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

25

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243005&selection=D589DE88D35E0818A47CA8BD2C85B0E5&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

General Plan Update (991)
Closed by December 31, 2021.

Project Scope
Update General Plan to comply with State Law. The General Plan governs development within Town 
limits.

Status as of June 30, 2021
The Town applied and received a $160,000 grant for the update of the General Plan. Currently, staff is 
working on an Existing Conditions report and drafting of the plan. Existing Condition report will be 
released in January/February 2020. Next step is the drafting of the General Plan, Environmental 
Impact Review (EIR), and the adoption of the full plan. Additional funding of $249,350 was allocated in 
FY 2020-21 to complete this project. The $160,000 grant will offset a portion of the increase. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The final draft of the General Plan is scheduled for public release in May 2021, the EIR will be released 
in late summer of 2021, and City Council adoption of the EIR and General Plan by the end of 
December 2021. 

Impact on Operation
The General Plan guides the Town’s residential and commercial developments. It also ensures 
compliance with State and Federal housing regulations. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

26

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244633&selection=05D18B5C175A348078A330329E3398A0&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Housing Element Update (996)
Project Scope
Pursuant to state law, the Town of Colma is required to update its General Plan Housing Element on a 
predetermined schedule.  The 6th Cycle Housing Element is required to be completed and certified by 
the state by January of 2023.  Staff is working with 21 Elements consultants and other San Mateo 
County jurisdictions on tasks related to the preparation of the element, including a housing site 
inventory and feasibility study.  The updated housing element will need to include a map and inventory 
of sites which will show where 202 units (determined through the RHNA process) can feasibly be built 
within the 8 year term of the Housing Element. In addition, the Housing Element will include policies 
and implementation items to remove barriers to the production of housing. Additional required activities 
may include site re-zonings, policy development, and zoning text amendments.  An environmental 
document will be required to be prepared to satisfy CEQA requirements. 

Status as of June 30, 2021
Preliminary work on the housing site inventory is currently underway. Regular coordination with 21 
Elements consultants will continue.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
In FY 2020-21, activities were focused on the housing element site inventory. In the FY 2021-22, the 
Housing Element document will be assembled and written.  A majority of the work will occur between 
January 2022 and November 2022. Work is anticipated to conclude by June 30, 2023.

Impact on Operation
Completion and certification of the Housing Element will allow the Town to be in full compliance with 
state law.  Failure to have a certified Housing Element may cause the Town to incur financial or legal 
penalties and and may make the Town ineligible for certain grant and funding opportunities. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

27

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243006&selection=8B88409677FD67FA998FE8DBAC75B7D7&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Zoning Code Update (997)
Project Scope
Pursuant to state law, the Town of Colma is required to amend its zoning code and zoning map after 
the adoption of the General Plan, anticipated by the end of calendar year 2021.  The General Plan and 
zoning must be consistent with one another. The Town of Colma zoning code has been added to over 
the years, and information is very hard to find, with land uses and development standards for each 
zone in two separate places.  The code requires reformatting and updating to be more user friendly.  In 
addition, in anticipation of the Municipal Code being converted to a searchable document by sections, 
the update will align with the goal of creating an easily searchable document. Sections will also be 
updated to comply with current state law. A minor environmental document will be required to be 
prepared to satisfy CEQA requirements. 

Status as of June 30, 2021
This is a new project that was added in as part of the mid-year financial update and budget 
amendment for FY 2020-21. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
This project is scheduled to begin in the first quarter of 2022 and end in the last quarter of 2022.

Impact on Operation
The Zoning Code Update will improve usability of zoning code by the public and developers. Staff will 
ensure that the zoning code complies with current legal requirements and that it is consistent with the 
General Plan. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

28

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244591&selection=B7C35FA2E8D9EDECF83E496F9F3591B0&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for 
FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27

There is no future unfunded portion estimated for either of the projects listed above.

Updated On 6 May, 2021

Reset

Broken down by

CIP - Cate 3 - City Fac & Long Rng Pln* Expenses

History  



Visualization

2022-23 
Projection

2023-24
Projection

2024-25 
Projection

2025-26
Projection

2026-27 
Projection

Fiscal Year

0.0

1.0M

250.0K

500.0K

750.0K

D
ol

la
rs

Back

Bark Park Upgrade (958)

Community Center Improv…

Corp Yard Improvements - …

Police Station Improvemen…

Recreation Master Plan (99…

Townwide Branding (959)

Sort A to Z 

    

Help  Share 

Future Projects

29



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Install concrete curbing around lawn and decomposed granite walkways
Provide play features for pets, including obstacle course and add additional pet amenities
Add permanent shade structure over benches and picnic table area
Add outdoor message board
Replace fencing as needed

Status as of June 30, 2021:
This project was deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The project is scheduled to start in the fall of 2022 and is estimated to be completed by early 2023.

Impact on Operation
Annual repairs should decrease, operation and maintenance of the Bark Park facility will continue. 

Bark Park Upgrade (958)
Scheduled for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $95,000

Project Scope:
The Bark Park located on lower D Street provides dog owners a site where they can allow their pets to 
play, run and socialize with other dogs. Though the park caters to dogs, it is also a place where 
residents can meet while their pets play and be contained within a safe and confined area. Currently 
the Bark Park is an underutilized park space, due to the fact that much of the facility has grown old, 
and is need of repair and upgrades. The proposed project and upgrades include:

Additional Picnic and seating spaces
Resurface and expand grass area

30



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Colma Community Center Painting and Repair 
(960)
Schedule for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $100,000

Project Scope
The Colma Community Center Facility is currently in need of painting. The work will include minor trim 
and building repairs, re-staining of the back deck. The Project is projected to take place in FY 2022-23.

Status as of June 30, 2021
New Project.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The project is scheduled to start and be completed in the Summer of 2022.

Impact on Operation
The improvement will not change the current annual maintenance cost. 

31



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

current HVAC system uses R-22 refrigerant. Production of R-22 refrigerant will not be manufactured 
after 2020 due to its harmful effects to the environment. After 2020 the only R-22 that will be available 
will be from recycled stock, as the stock becomes depleted the cost of R-22 will increase to the point 
where it is cost prohibited to service the current HVAC equipment.

This project is slated to be in the CIP long range plans, consideration for replacing the HVAC 
equipment is estimated to be 5 years out (approximately 2024), funding for replacement will be 
pursued through State and Local grant programs that assist in energy equipment upgrades.

Status as of June 30, 2021
None. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
Depending on the condition of the HVAC system and the Town's HVAC maintenance contractor's 
assessment, the project is temporarily scheduled for improvement and rehabilitation in FY 2022-23. 
The project cost is estimated to be $750,000 to $900,000. 

Impact on Operation
Costs for both Maintenance and operation should decrease due to the effeciences of a new system 
and annual maintenance should be limited to general maintenance and not having to make needed 
repairs.

HVAC System Replacement at Police Station 
(943)
Schedule for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $750,000

Project Scope
The HVAC system at the Colma Police Station is showing signs of failure due to exposure from the 
weather, quality of the equipment and everyday normal use, (because the Department is open 24 
hours, some of the units are used continuously). The other issue that will face the Department is the 

32



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Corporation Yard Car Wash Upgrade (954)
Scheduled for FY 2023-24
Estimated Project Cost: $170,000

Project Scope
Under the Town of Colma's Municipal Regional Permit (a State permit to discharge Storm Water), it is 
required that municipalities provide washdown facilities for various pieces of equipment. Currently, the 
Public Works department follows the State Stormwater mandates but the effort to stay in compliance is 
a tedious and time-consuming effort. A washdown station will be constructed on site in the Corporation 
yard, the drive in wash area would have a roof over the washdown area and floor drains that are 
connected to a clarifier (prevents oil and grease to flow into the sanitary system), allowing the gray 
water from the washdown area to enter the sanitary sewer system.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This Project is scheduled to begin in FY 2023-24.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
This Project is scheduled to begin in FY 2023-24 with a budget $170k.

Impact on Operation
This project will decrease Maintenance workers time in the washdown of equpment and cleanup.

33



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Recreation Operation and Facility Master Plan 
(995)
Schedule for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $50,000

Project Scope
The Recreation Department has grown over the last several years. The department has added 
additional community events, in-house programs and contract programs. The department plans to 
continue to grow in all areas of service; more specifically in teen and senior programming. The 
department seeks to develop solutions to facilities' needs that will better serve our current and future 
residents. The department is requesting that the facility master plan study provides: 

Options for areas of possible future expansion.
Help to identify a designated space for teens (Teen Center). 
Clarify design information to make a more informed decision on future facility additions or remodels. 
Evaluation of present facility conditions and future requirements to identify needs.
Feasibility study and program plan to identify all viable options and their costs.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This Project was deferred due to the Covid 19 pandemic.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
To be determined

Impact on Operation
To be determined

34



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
This Project is scheduled to begin in 2022-23.

Impact on Operation
There may additional annual costs to maintain the branding campaign which may include updated 
street light banners and marketing materials.

Townwide Branding (959)
Schedule for FY 2022-23
Estimated Project Cost: $200,000

Project Scope
The 2012 Economic Development Plan identified several strategies within the framework of the study. 
One of the strategies was to create Branding and Promotional Materials emphasizing Colma’s 
commercial activities. Phase 1 of this project will be to prepare an RFP and hire a firm to develop a 
community branding campaign. The process will involve local outreach, surveys, interviews with 
business leaders, and other research, and utilizing this information to establish creative options for the 
community’s brand. Phase 2 will be to launch an expanded image and branding campaign highlighting 
Colma’s brand through logo, marketing brochures, letterhead, street light banners, promotional 
campaigns, advertisements and tag lines. Staff will look to partner with local businesses and shopping 
centers for funding opportunities.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This Project was deferred due to the Covid 19 pandemic.

35



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Closed Projects

Climate Action Plan (994)
Project Scope
The Climate Action Plan (CAP) guides the Town’s actions for greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets 
established under State Law (Assembly Bill 32, signed into law in 2006). Colma has completed an 
updated Community-wide Greenhouse Gas Inventory Report which confirmed that the Town should 
meet reduction targets.

The Town completed its first 2013 Community Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory Report that detailed 
GHG reductions of 18.2% from the 2005 baseline to 2013. This significant reduction takes the Town 
close to its goal, which is 20% by 2020. Due to changes in the California Public Utilities Commission 
reporting rules, it has been more difficult to obtain energy use data after 2013.

The updating of the CAP is not only critical in meeting the Town’s mandated 2020 goals, but it is also 
critical in the updating of the Town’s General Plan. In addition, Senate Bill 32 was signed by the 
Governor in 2016 that requires a higher GHG reduction target reduction of 40% below 1990 levels by 
2030. In order to meet this target, it is necessary to update the CAP to meet this more aggressive 
reduction target since current CAP programs will likely not bring about the target reductions.

Status as of June 30, 2021
On October 28, 2020, the City Council accepted the Climate Action Plan 2030 Update. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
None.

Impact on Operation
This is a planning document that provide guidelines to the Town reducing energy consumption, along 
with greenhouse gas emission. The implementation of the CAP program will be integrated into the 
Town’s operations.

36



2021-22 CIP 03 Facilities & Plans

Project Funding by Fiscal 
Year

Project Spending by Fiscal 
Year

$9,166.75
Expenses in 2021

$0

$5K

$10K

$15K

$20K

$25K

2019 2020 2021

Climate Action Plan Update (994)

Reasonable Accommodation:
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who 
requires a modification or accommodation to view the document, should direct such a request to Pak 
Lin, Administrative Services Director, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov Please allow two 
business days for your request to be processed.

Town of Colma

1198 El Camino Real

Town Website

Powered by OpenGov

37



2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

(The budget presentation has been adapted for OpenGov 
Stories platform. The charts and tables have changed but the 

narratives are the same.)

Active Projects

Town of Colma, California www.colma.ca.gov

Major Equipment, Technology & Fleet
Capital Improvement Plan

FY 2021-22 Budget

Equipment Purchase and Replacement (984)
Project Scope
This Capital Improvement Project covers the purchase of major equipment Town-wide. 

In the FY 2019-20, the Police Department updated the dispatch center radio and equipment. The 
Police base station radio and dispatch console equipment was nearing its useful life. The dispatch 
center was upgraded to digital in preparation for future radio updates. The radio itself will remain an 
analog system to be consistent with other Police Departments in San Mateo County and to 
communicate with Town Officers. The minimum life expectancy is 10 years. The project funding of 
$250,000 is required in FY 2019-20. This purchase was completed in FY 2020-21. 
For FY 2021-22, the Town will be purchasing body worn cameras and replacing the police in-car 
cameras. The purchase will include new tasers, automatic license plate reader (ALPR) units, and 
new computers for the police cars to support the new in-car camera systems. Projected cost is 
$191,000.
Future Project, encryption of the dispatch center, portable radio, and vehicle radio transmission. 
On October 12, 2020, the California Department of Justice issued a bulletin requiring all law 
enforcement and criminal justice agencies to limit access of certain Criminal Justice Information 
(CJI) and Personally Identifiable Information (PII) to authorized personnel and to encrypt the 
transmission of such information. The process and cost of encrypting radio transmission is unknown 
at this time. The Town has until 2024 to encrypt its radio transmissions. In the meantime, the Town 
will use a temporary work around provided by the County Chief's Association.

38

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl
http://www.colma.ca.gov/


2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Status as of June 30, 2021
The Town purchased and updated the dispatch center radio and equipment in FY 2019-20 and the 
project was completed in FY 2020-21. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
This is an ongoing CIP program. The Body Worn Camera Project is projected to start in FY 2021-22 
and be completed in FY 2022-23.

Impact on Operation
The goal of this ongoing program is to keep operating maintenance costs low. The annual maintenance 
costs total $75,000 for body worn camera, ALPR, and in-car cameras. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

39

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244662&selection=85B960C12CF3A2C17D73A1D876C99CA2&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Financial Software Replacement (965)
Project Scope
The Town of Colma currently uses Eden Software provided by Tyler Technologies to record, manage 
and track all of the City's revenues, expenditures and financial transactions. The Eden Software 
product is being phased out by the vendor. It will need to be replaced with another Financial Software 
System prior to the end of life of the Eden Software product. Staff anticipates that this will be necessary 
towards the middle of the 5-Year Capital Project budget cycle. 

The proposed project will include the use of an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Consultant 
($50,000) to assist with software needs assessment, preparation of the Request for Proposal (RFP) for 
the software system, conducting the RFP process and the software evaluation process. The balance of 
the project budget will cover the cost of the new ERP Financial System Software ($500,000).

Features to be requested from the software vendors include the full range of City Financial System 
capabilities including General Ledger (GL), Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, Budget, Payroll, 
Purchasing, Accounting and Cash Management. Optional features may include Point of Sale, Cash 
Receipts and Business License Tax management. As part of the RFP and selection process, software 
vendors will be asked to provide a response to the RFP that offers both an on-site server-based 
system and a hosted/cloud-based system. 

During the software implementation phase of the project, training will be provided to Town Staff on the 
operation of the software. Additional training will be provided during the first year at key milestones 
including fiscal year close, year end close, 1099 production, budget preparation and budget roll over to 
GL to ensure the success of the implementation of the new ERP Financial Software System.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This project was deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
The Town will begin a needs assessment in the Summer of 2022.  Key project milestones will include; 
1. Software System Needs Assessment and RFP Development, 2. Issue RFP to Software Vendors, 3.
Respond to Questions from Vendors, 4. Feature Demonstrations From Most Qualified Vendors, 5.
Award of Contract by City Council, 6. Installation of Software, 7. Running New Software In Parallel With
Existing Eden Software System, 8. Training Staff on Use of New Software, 9. Follow Up Training,
Consulting and Software Modifications to Implement New Software System.

40



2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Impact on Operation
During the software implementation, the workload will increase for the Finance Department. The 
Department may consider the use of an intern to assist in the process. Once the system is in, there 
may be cost-saving measures available. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

41

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244663&selection=0924AE57E88F2BD362B89ADAC3820F01&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest
https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244666&selection=5FB4CC33634E2F14AE44E2694B0831AA&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986)
Project Scope
The ongoing maintenance of computers, as well as the Town’s backbone network, requires periodic 
upgrades to ensure that operations continue. The project includes:
• Replacement of desktop computers and other equipment.
• Technology needs in the Town Hall facility and other Town-owned facilities.
• Update software.
• Update and upgrade to servers, switches and routers.
• New switch to interconnect the Police Department and Town Hall sites.

Status as of June 30, 2021
This Project is ongoing.

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
IT and Infrastructure upgrades is an ongoing capital investment.

Impact on Operation
This ongoing program provides timely replacement of essential technology hardware to ensure minimal 
impact on Town daily operation. 

Project Funding and Spending Plan

42

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244663&selection=0924AE57E88F2BD362B89ADAC3820F01&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest
https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244666&selection=5FB4CC33634E2F14AE44E2694B0831AA&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Vehicle Replacement (987)
Project Scope
This Capital Improvement Project covers the purchase of vehicles and major fleet items Town-wide. In 
the FY 2021-22, the Police Department will replace the patrol supervisor vehicle (Flex Fuel Tahoe, 
$64k), a patrol (Hybrid Explorer, $60k) and one detective vehicle (Honda,  $40k). The cost of these 
three vehicles is estimated at $164,000, including outfitting with public safety equipment.

The Town plans to replace the Public Works Maintenance Truck in FY 2022-23 and roughly two police 
vehicles a year. A full assessment of the fleet replacement schedule will be completed in FY 2021-22. 

Status as of June 30, 2021
The Vehicle Replacement Project was deferred in FY 2020-21 due to the Covid 19 pandemic. The 
$20,000 budget below is the carryover budget to equip the Public Works vehicle purchased near the 
end of FY 2019-20. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
This is an ongoing CIP project.

Impact on Operation
The goal of this ongoing program is to keep operating maintenance costs low.

Project Funding and Spending Plan

43

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244667&selection=5F14524675034B27F2252F5EC6A38891&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for 
FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27

There is no future unfunded portion estimated for either of the projects listed above.

Updated On 6 May, 2021

Reset

Broken down by

Police Parking Permit Software (981) Expenses

History  



Visualization

2022-23 
Projection

2023-24
Projection

2024-25 
Projection

2025-26
Projection

2026-27 
Projection

Fiscal Year

0.0

20.0K

40.0K

D
ol

la
rs

Back

Police Parking Permit Softw…

Sort Large to Small 

    

Help  Share 

Future Projects

44



2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter
To be determined.

Impact on Operation
The project will reduce labor hours in maintaining and issuing parking permits and will add an 
annual licensing cost to the Police Department budget.

Parking Permit Software (981)
Project Scope:
This project will include the hiring of a consultant and deployment of a software solution that will 
manage the Town’s parking permit program. Features will include:

Parking permit database management system.
Parking permit record keeping.
Online user capabilities.
Online distribution of guest parking permits.
Mobile parking enforcement solutions.

Status as of June 30, 2021:
This Project was deferred due to the Covid 19 pandemic.

45



2021-22 CIP 04 Equipment

Closed Projects

No active projects scheduled to close by June 30, 2021.

Reasonable Accommodation:
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who 
requires a modification or accommodation to view the document, should direct such a request to Pak 
Lin, Administrative Services Director, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov Please allow two 
business days for your request to be processed.

Town of Colma

1198 El Camino Real

Town Website

Powered by OpenGov

46

http://pak.lin@colma.ca.gov/
https://www.colma.ca.gov/
https://opengov.com/

	05.12.21 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 04.28.21
	3. Report of Checks Paid - April
	4. Second Reading - Electronic Claims Ordinance
	5. Second Reading - Adoption of Sewer Fees by Resolution
	6. FY 2021 - 2022 Water Conservation Incentive Program
	A. Resolution - Water Conservation Incentive

	7. Holy Cross Cell Tower - 1500 Mission Road
	A. Resolution - Updated 05.12.21
	A. Resolution - Original Posted 05.07.12
	B.  Project Plans
	C. Color and Material Sample
	D. Coverage Maps
	E. RF Emissions Report
	F. Photo Simulations

	8. FY 2021-2022 Capital Budget
	A. 2021-22 CIP Section
	Capital Improvement Plan Overview
	CIP Project Categories
	Project Status
	FY 2020-21 CIP Overview
	FY 2021-22 CIP Highlight
	Funding & Spending Plan

	01 Streets Project
	Active Projects
	Annual Roadway Rehab
	F-Street Retaining Wall
	Mission Rd Bike & Ped

	Future Projects
	Funding & Spending Plan
	El Camino Real Bike & Ped Improvement
	Lawndale & ECR Landscape
	Serramonte/Serra Center Signalization
	Serramonte/Collins Rdwy Improvement

	Closed Projects
	El Camino Real Bike & Ped Plan


	02 Sewer Projects
	Active Projects
	Future Projects
	Funding & Spending Plan
	Colma Creek Channel Repairs
	Storm Drain System Assessment and Mapping

	Closed Projects

	03 Facilities & Plans
	Active Projects
	Colma Museum Facility Repair
	Creekside Villas Repair
	Facility Parking Lot Upgrades
	General Plan Update
	Housing Element Update
	Zoning Code Update

	Future Projects
	Funding & Spending Plan
	Bark Park Upgrade
	Colma Community Center Painting
	Corporation Yard Car Wash Upgrade
	HVAC System Replacement at PD
	Recreation Ops and Facility Master Plan
	Townwide Branding

	Closed Projects
	Climate Action Plan


	04 Equipment
	Active Projects
	Equipment Purchase & Replacement
	Financial Software Replacement
	IT Infrastructure Upgrades
	Vehicle Replacement

	Future Projects
	Parking Permit Software

	Closed Projects



	Item #7 Attachment A - updated 05.12.21.pdf
	UPDATED 05.12.21
	RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__
	Of the City Council of the Town of Colma
	1. Background
	This resolution was adopted after the following proceedings had occurred:
	2. Findings
	(a) The proposed facility will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma General Plan and Colma Municipal Code and will not adversely affect the policies and goals set forth therein.
	(b) The proposed facility strictly adheres to the development standards and other applicable regulations within this Chapter or, if applicable, an exception is granted.
	(c) The proposed facility is in compliance with all FCC (Federal Communications Commission) and CPUC (California Public Utilities Commission) requirements, and is not otherwise detrimental to public safety, community welfare, and health, considering a...
	(d) The proposed facility will not create a nuisance or enforcement problem within the neighborhood.
	(e) The proposed facility incorporates general site considerations, including site layout, open space and topography, orientation and location of buildings, vehicular access, circulation and parking, setbacks, height, walls, fences, public safety and ...
	(f) The proposed design incorporates general architectural considerations, including the character, scale and quality of the design, the architectural relationship with the site and other buildings, building materials, colors, screening of exterior ap...
	(g) The proposed design incorporates general landscape considerations, including the location, type, size, color, texture and coverage of plant materials, provisions for irrigation, maintenance and protection of landscaped areas and similar elements t...
	(h) The proposed facility is designed to blend with the surrounding environment, with minimal visual impact.
	(i) The proposed facility is designed, sited, and will be operated in a manner that does not adversely impact adjacent properties by noise, traffic, aesthetic, or other impacts over which the Town has purview.

	3. Conditions of Approval
	(a) Allowed Uses.  This Conditional Use Permit shall specifically allow the operations of the AT&T wireless communications facility and associated equipment at the 30’ x 40’ area at Holy Cross Cemetery as specified in application materials received Ma...
	(b) Expiration. The Use Permit for a WCF shall expire ten years from the date of approval unless the Use Permit is renewed by the Town. An application for renewal shall be submitted at least six months prior to the expiration of the Use Permit.
	(c) Minor Changes.  Minor changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively by the City Planner or designee.
	(d) Conduit. All proposed cables, conduits and electrical boxes for the proposed project will be placed underground or be concealed.
	(e) USA North.  The applicant should contact USA North to assure that there are no utilities that conflict with the proposed improvements (USA North: 811/1-800-227-2600).
	(f) Stormwater Treatment. Plans submitted for construction permit(s) should incorporate stormwater treatment/Low Impact Development options for small projects such as infiltration basins or landscape-based measures like bioswales for stormwater draina...
	(g) Construction plans. The construction plans shall include an erosion & Sediment control plan, construction BMP plan, and a construction staging plan.
	(h) Recorded Easements. If the proposed easements on the plans are recorded, the applicant shall provide copies of recorded easements prior to issuance of Town permit(s).
	(i) Colma Fire Protection District Requirements. The following requirements of the Colma Fire Protection District shall be met prior to operation of the wireless facility:
	(j) Other Approvals. The permittee shall obtain all other applicable permits, approvals, and agreements necessary to install and operate the WCF in conformance with federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations.
	(j) Other Approvals. The permittee shall obtain all other applicable permits, approvals, and agreements necessary to install and operate the WCF in conformance with federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations.
	(k) Permits.  The Permittee shall obtain all necessary permits, including Building Permits and an Encroachment Permit for any work in the public right-of-way, prior to construction.
	(l) Building Permit Submittal. The applicant shall submit a soils report, engineering plans and energy documents with the building permit submittal.
	(m) Property lease. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a signed copy of the property lease agreement, exclusive of financial terms of the agreement, including provisions for the removal of the telecommunications facility wit...
	(m) Property lease. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a signed copy of the property lease agreement, exclusive of financial terms of the agreement, including provisions for the removal of the telecommunications facility wit...
	(n) Structural Integrity. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a letter or report signed by a licensed profession engineer specializing in structural engineering documenting the ability of the structure to accept anten...
	(n) Structural Integrity. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a letter or report signed by a licensed profession engineer specializing in structural engineering documenting the ability of the structure to accept anten...
	(o) Security Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a security plan which includes emergency contact information, location of main breaker switch, emergency procedures to follow, and any other information as requir...
	(o) Security Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a security plan which includes emergency contact information, location of main breaker switch, emergency procedures to follow, and any other information as requir...
	(p) Maintenance Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a description of the anticipated maintenance program and back-up generator power testing schedule.
	(p) Maintenance Plan. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall submit a description of the anticipated maintenance program and back-up generator power testing schedule.
	(q) New Address. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall apply for a new address for the wireless facility.
	(q) New Address. Prior to submitting for a building permit, the applicant shall apply for a new address for the wireless facility.
	(r) Facility Maintenance. All WCFs and related equipment, including but not limited to fences, cabinets, poles, and landscaping, shall be maintained in good working condition over the life of the Use Permit. This shall include keeping the structures m...
	(r) Facility Maintenance. All WCFs and related equipment, including but not limited to fences, cabinets, poles, and landscaping, shall be maintained in good working condition over the life of the Use Permit. This shall include keeping the structures m...
	(s) Performance Bond. Prior to issuance of a building or electrical permit, the permittee shall file with the Town, and shall maintain in good standing throughout the term of the approval, a performance bond or other surety or another form of security...
	(s) Performance Bond. Prior to issuance of a building or electrical permit, the permittee shall file with the Town, and shall maintain in good standing throughout the term of the approval, a performance bond or other surety or another form of security...
	(t) Construction & Maintenance House. The permittee shall make a good faith effort to minimize project-related disruptions to adjacent properties. Site improvement and construction work, including setup, loading or unloading of materials or equipment,...
	(t) Construction & Maintenance House. The permittee shall make a good faith effort to minimize project-related disruptions to adjacent properties. Site improvement and construction work, including setup, loading or unloading of materials or equipment,...
	(u) Height Verification. The property owner(s) or permittee shall submit a certification letter from a California certified land surveyor or registered civil engineer, which verifies that structure height complies with the approved construction drawings.
	(u) Height Verification. The property owner(s) or permittee shall submit a certification letter from a California certified land surveyor or registered civil engineer, which verifies that structure height complies with the approved construction drawings.
	(v) Encourage Collocation. Where the wireless communication facility site is capable of accommodating a collocated facility upon the same site, the owner and operator of the existing facility shall allow another carrier to collocate its facilities and...
	(v) Encourage Collocation. Where the wireless communication facility site is capable of accommodating a collocated facility upon the same site, the owner and operator of the existing facility shall allow another carrier to collocate its facilities and...
	(w) Nuisances. The Permittee shall not allow any nuisance to be maintained at the premises.
	(x) Town Access. The Town reserves the right of its employee, agents, and designated representatives to inspect permitted facilities and property upon reasonable notice to the permittee. In case of an emergency or risk of imminent harm to persons or p...
	(x) Town Access. The Town reserves the right of its employee, agents, and designated representatives to inspect permitted facilities and property upon reasonable notice to the permittee. In case of an emergency or risk of imminent harm to persons or p...
	(y) Contact Information. The permittee shall maintain on file with the Town and onsite at the wireless communications facility contact information of all parties responsible for maintenance of the facility.
	(y) Contact Information. The permittee shall maintain on file with the Town and onsite at the wireless communications facility contact information of all parties responsible for maintenance of the facility.
	(z) RF Emission Monitoring. WCFs, whether operating alone or in conjunction with other facilities, shall not generate radio frequency emissions in excess of the standards established by the Federal Communications Commission. Within one (1) month after...
	(z) RF Emission Monitoring. WCFs, whether operating alone or in conjunction with other facilities, shall not generate radio frequency emissions in excess of the standards established by the Federal Communications Commission. Within one (1) month after...
	(aa) Abandonment

	4. General Conditions
	(bb) This Conditional Use Permit shall run with the land and be freely and automatically transferred to each user of the property described herein, subject to each of the specific and general conditions herein. As used in this Conditional Use Permit, ...
	(cc) The Permittee must comply with all applicable federal, state and municipal laws, codes and regulations, including the California Building and Fire Codes. Nothing herein shall be construed as authorizing any approvals under, or any exceptions to a...
	(dd) Indemnification. The permittee and property owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Colma, its agents, officers, officials, and employees (i) from all claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions or proceed...
	(dd) Indemnification. The permittee and property owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Colma, its agents, officers, officials, and employees (i) from all claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions or proceed...
	(ee) The Conditional Use Permit may be modified or revoked should it be determined that:
	(ff) The Permittee must agree to comply with each and every term and condition herein by countersigning a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the City Clerk no more than 45 days following City Council approval of the permi...





